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Allegation 

DCIS initiated this investigatioh based on a request for assistance from the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA), Office of fnspector General (OTO). Specifica lly, it was.alleged that 
on October 24, 2013, SA Elisabeth Drake, now known as SA Elisabeth [-feller, EPA OIG, 
conducted an interview o (b) (6), (b) (7)(C)~ Office of.Homeland Security (OHS), EPA . 
Subsequent to that interview, Heller realized she had forgotten to have (b)(6)  (b)(7)

(C) sign a Non-
Disclosure Agreement (NbA), so she went to lhe OHS office SJ)ace to have (b)(6)  (b)(7)

(C) sign the form . 
Heller reported that upon arriving at OHS, she advised (b)(6)  (b)

(7)(C) that he was not permitted to -
discuss the details of his OIG interview with anyone except bis attorney. While she was 
speaking to -(b)(6)  (b)(7)

(C) Mr. Steven Williams, Senior fntel ligence Officer, EPA, allegedly assaulted 
and intimidated 11er. [ t ·was fur!her alleged that during a separate, subsequent incident later that 
day, Williams was abusive towards other OIG personnel and interfered with 01G SA .. 
11111 and (b)(6)  (b)(7)(C) attempt to interview another OHS 
employee, 

(b)(6)  (b)(7)(C)
, about the alleged assm11t ofHeller. Jonathan Bi ran, Will iams' . 

attorney, alleged that the OIG engaged in a campaign of intimidation and harassment of OHS 
leading up to the events of October 24, 2013. Specifically, Biran alleged that the OIG launched 
an "ultra vires" investigation of OHS to intimidate and retaliate against Williams and other OHS 
personnel as part ofa turf war between the OIG and OHS.· 

Scope.and Findings 

The following .issues and findings delineate the scope ofthe DCTS investigRtion: 

1. Did SA Heller improperly attempt to prevent-(b)(6)  (b)(7)(C) from d isclosing details of his 

intei:view when she told l1im he was not permitted to discuss details of the interview 
with anyone other than his atlorney? 

DCIS substantiated that SA Heller violated the EPA· rable of Offenses, Number 22a, 

"Negligent performance of duties where damage or waste to Government property is 

insubstantial", by performing her duties in a negligent manner. " 

2. 	 D.id SA Heller-im properly commnnicaf:e with someone she knew to be represented by 

counsel without counsel p resent? 

DCfS substantiated that SA Heller violated EPA OIG Policy 207, Section 4-1, "Legal 

Representation." 

3 . 	 Did W ill iams violate EPA Table of Offenses Number 8 "Abusive or offensive language, 

gestures, or other conduct'', during l1is interaction wjth SA Hel!er? 
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I>t.. IS did nol :rnhslnnthl • Urat WiJJiams violalcd l:J>A 'l'.1bli; ofOffenses N11mhcr 8 
eluting his interaction with SA Helkr. 

•l. Did (b)(6), (b)(7)(C)- viohtc EPA-OIG policy Number 107, "Rl'rouf l{cview~, lnh.:rviews. 
(b)(6)  (b)(7)
(C)Advisement of Rights, Oaths, and Stalements'', by ca11si11g ­ 10 rc:isonably perceive 

Ihat ht~ wns in a custodi,ll situation? 

DCrH ~rnbstirnt i af'od that (b)(6)  (b)(7)(C) violn!ccl ll PA Policy N'11nibcr 20'/ , l' a1t 3. 1 du ri11g l1is 
int<'rnction with (b)(6)  (b)(7)

(C)

­
- . 

5. 	 Did Wi lJiums violate EPA Table ofOffonscs Number 16 " ...1di1sal 10 tcsli!y or 
coopcrn1c in an officiul proceeding", or 20 "fnsubordimth: clcJiancc ofauthority, 
disrcg:ird ofciireclive, refusal to comply with proper order", <luring his second 
inl("I nc1ion with the OIG on Ocwber 24. 2013? 

DCJS did uot substantiate lbat Williams \ io!::?tcd Tnblt: ofOffenses Number 16, :md did 
not sul>slamiate thal Williams violated Table oiOffenscs Numbi.:-r 20. 
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The fo llowing standards, while not exhanstive o f standards applicable to the facts 

presented, were the standards primarily c..:ons idered during this investigation. 


l) 	 EPA Policy NumlH~\- 20'/ : Record Reviews, lnferviews, Advisement ofRights, aud 

Sfatements, ·Par t 3-1. 


3- l . GENERAL. As appropriate, Special Agents will advise a subject, a suspect, or a 
witness ofhis or her right.s in accordance with the circumstances (i.e., custodial vs. non­
custodial situation; Federc\I employee vs. non-employee; criminal vs. administrative 
investigation) . 

Unless taken in to custody, persons interviewed by the OIG are free to leave an interview at 
any time. Occasionally, circwpstances might evolve under wh ich an interviewee could 
reasonably perceive that a custodial situation had arisen. Special Agents should take care to · 
prevent such situations from arising. 

2) 	 EPA OIG Policy Number 207; Record Reviews, In terviews, Advisement of Rights, 
Oa ths, and Statements; part 4-1. 

4-1 . LEGAL REPRESENTATION. 

a. In accordru1ce with Section 3 herein, Special Agents should notify an individual of the 
right to an attorney only when the individual is in custody and is the subject or Sl!Spect in a 
criminal investigation. 

b. OIG policy permi ts an employee who is not in custody to have an attorney present at an 
interview if the employee so requests. Should the employee make such a request, the Special. 
Agent will advise t11e employee that any expense for an attoi·ney is the respo1is ibility oftbe 
employee. 

c. The Special Agent will allow the individLwl a rc:iasonable opportunity to arrange fo r an 
attorney to be present at the. interv iew. 

cl. The function of the attorney is to furn ish advice and provide assistance to the individual 
during the interview. Off-the-record consultations are permitted. If the attorney significantly 
disrupts the interview by exceeding this function and the interview becomes unproductive, 
the Special Agent should state the .ro le of the attorney and explain how the attorney is 
exc~ed ing his or her role. The Special Agent should inform the employee that the interview 
cannot proceed under such circumstances. Ifan agreeable compromise cam1ot be reached, 
and the interview continues to be unproductive, the Special Agent should terminate the 
interview. 

·-- - -- --~-.~-----··----~ 	 ---¥~------· 

iFiCATiON : 
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c. ·111e Spe~ial Agc11t should be alert to :tuy polc111ial conflkts of illlcrcst. for example, a 

connict of inlcrc-.sl nMy exist if the attorney represent~ mom lh:111 011.; 11bjecl or suspect in a 

c:Jsc with conllicling defenses or also represents a\'. itncss. l he Spedal Agent should inform 

lht: ap1 IOprinre rovernment officials (Assislaut United Slnt,,;.<; .-\1to111ey, lrial llltorncy, orG 

nmc~ ol Co1111sel. elc.) with a need to know about potential cunllicls of illll~ICS[ at Lhe 

curliest c pµortunily. 

3) 5 IJ.S.C'. fiSSS, i\11 ci ll:u y Mati:1~rs 

(n)This sci.;tion npplics, according to llic provisi.011s !hcrul) f, oxcept 1w otlwrwisu provided by 

this subchaplcr. 


(b)A person compelled to appear in person before nn agency or rcprescntiltivc thereof is 

c111itled to h4! accompanied. represented, 2nd advised by counsel 01, ifpc1mittccl by the 

ngcncy, by other quolificd representative. A party is cnlitlcd 10 .1ppear i11 person or by or 

wilh counsel or olhcr duly qualified represcntalive in :111 ngency proc.ceclinp. So for as the 

orderly conduct ofpublic business peDDits, an interested pe1son mny nppe;:r hdore an 

agency or its responsible employees for the presentation. n~ju~tmcnl. 01 determination ofan 

iss11c, request, or conlrovcrsy in a prcceeding, whell1e1 interlocuto1y, sununa1y. or otherwise, 

or in connection with ~'l ·1gency fonctzon. With due regard for the convenience und necessity 

of !he parties or their f\,!presentatives 2nd within '.l reason 1blc time, ead1 ngency shall 

p1occed to c ncludc a matter prc-:-cnted to it. Thi· :..11bscc1ion docs 11 t 1 1t ur d ny a p.:r.:on 

Y.ltu is not a lawyer the right to appear for or rep1escn1 others before an .1pcncy 01 in an 

agency proceeding. 

(c) Process, requirement ofa report, inspection, or other i11vcsligntivc act or dc111a11d may not 

be issued, mndc, or c11forccd exccplas authorized by law. A pcr~on compelled lo submit 

cl.1111 ol' evidence is c11tiUed to ret(lin or, on payment or lawru lly pn~sc;ribi•cl costs, procure a 

c:opy or lrnnscripl lht:rc()f, except that iJ1 a nonpublic: invcsligulory pl'oi.;ci;di 11g llH;witness 

mny for good cnu~c be limiled to inspection of the offieial lrnnscripl of his lt•stimony. 


(d) 1\ ~.::nr.y subpoenas authorized by law shall be issued ton pa1 Ly on 1cqucsl aucl, when 

required hy 111lr.s ofprocedure, on a statement or showing ofgcncrnl 1ckvnm.c and 

fcnsom1blc scope of lhc evidenGe sought. On contest, the court shall sustni11 lhe subpoena or 

similnr procr. ·s or clemami to the extent i.har it is found to be in accordan~ • · · ith bw. In a 

p1occeding for enforcement, the court shall issue an order requiring the nppcarance of the 

witness or the procfuction of the evidence or data wi1hin 11 reasonable Lime under penalty of 

punishment for contempt in case ofcontumacious failure to comply. 


(..:) Prompt notice shnll be given ofthe denial in whole or in pai I ofn written application. 

petition, tJr other 1equest ofan interested person made in connection with :111y ag ncy 

prc>cceding. Fxccpl in aflir111ing a prior denial or whe11 the dcninl is self-explanatory, the 

notice shnl l be acco111panied by a brief statement oflht; g101111ds for ucni.1 I. 


·---~-

http:inlcrc-.sl
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'!) 	 28 U.S.C. §530B, Mclhrlc-Muriha Anum cl nwnf: IW1ir.:il St-::indnr<ls fo 1-Ju~lkl! 

Depn r tnrnn t Atto rney.'>. 


(a) A11 allol·ney for fhe Government shall be subject to State laws and rules, ;ind local 
!7edernl t;Omt rules, governing aHorneys in each Staf.e where such aHorncy engages in that 
attorney's duties, to I.lie selme extent and in the same mnnner (IS other attorneys in that State. 

(b) The f\Uorney Gener::il shall make and amend rules of lhe Department orJustice to nssure 
compliance with t11is section. 

(c) As 11scc.J in this section, the term "attorney for lhc Government" includes any altorney 
described iii seclion 77.2(a) ofpart 77 of title 28 of the Code of rederal Regulations and <1 lso 
includes any independent counsel, or employee of such a counsel, appointed under chapter 

110. 

5) 	 18 U.8.C. §111>Assa ulting, resisting, or imped ing cer (ain officers or e mployees 

(a) fn Genernl.- Whoever­
( l) forc ibly assaults, resists , opposes, impedes, intimidates, or interferes witl1 any 
person designated in section 1114 of this title while engaged in or on account of the 
performa nce of offic ial duties; or 

(2) forcibly assaults or intjmidates any person who formerly served CIS a person 
designated in section 1114 on account ofthe performance o.f officifll duties during 
such person's term ofservice, 
sholl, where the acts in violation of this section constitute oo ly simple assault, be 
fined under this title or imprisou~d not more limn one year, or both, and where such 
nets involve phys ical confact with t·hc victim of that assau lt or the intent to comn1it 
~111other felony. be fined under this title or imprisone<l not more lhan 8 years, or 
both. 

6) 	 nc Code Section 22-404, Assault or thrci1tened assn1rlt iu a rnc1iac.ing ma nner; 
sta lking 

(a) (1) Whoever unlawfully assaults, or threatens another in a menacing manner, shall be 

fined not more than the amount set forlh in § 22-357 1.01 or be imprisoned not more 

tha11 l80 days, or both. 


(2) Whoever unlowtully assaults, or threatens another in a menacing manner, and . 
in tentionally, knowingly, or reckless ly causes sign ificant bod ily injury to another 
shall be fined not more Urnn the amount set forth i11 § 22-357 1.0J or be imprisoned 
not rnore than 3 years, or both. For lhc purposes of this paragraph, the term 
"significant bodily injury" means an injury that requi res hospita lization or immediate 
medica l auenlion. 

·------·---~---------

http:22-3571.01
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'/) 	 EPA Conuuc·( n11d Discipline :\Iauual, l'ablc• of Offousc · 

7. 	Conduct which is generally criminal. info1no11s, dishonr.i:t, in1111c)r:tl or notoriously 
clisg111ccful. 

8. 	 Abus he or offe11sivc language, geslmcs, c>r olh.:r c.:onduct. 
16. 	 Deliberate misrcpresenlation, folsific:Hion, m11ccalmc11l t>r withholding ofa 

1111tc1 ial fact, or refusaJ to testily or wopcrntc in an olticial proceeding. 
ISa. l hrcatcning or attempting to inflict bodi ly hmm. 
20. l11 sttbcmli11a(c.: ch;(iance ofauthority, disrcgnl'd or din·ctiv1;, rcl'u:ml to comply 

wil It prnp<!r order. 
2211. Ncgliuont pt:l'fonrwnce of dnt:ics . . . Whc:rn d 1111111g1: 0 1· wnslo lo Government 

property is insubslao1 ial. 

3) 	 r~ ,,A M<· mor:rnd II Ill " Cooperation wil h th e- ()ffi,•c of th1• l11s1wl'lo r ( ;c•11c1·aP', elated 
\ugu ( 7, 2011 9 . 

..It is imperative lhnt. upon request, Agency pcrson11el prO\•idi; Of(, :111dito1s, evaluators and 
investigators with full and unrestricted access to perso1111d1 faciliti s, records (including, bur 
not limited to, 1eport~. databases and documents). or other infomrntion or material that is 
needed by llw OIG ro accomplish ?..s mission. Unrestricted nee ss menn~ rhat managers and 
smff arc not ro impose burdensome administrative requirements or scrcc11i11g procedures that 
could impede OlG access to needed emploJees and materials. Mnnngemcnt should not 

.slh.:mpl lo conhol <II i11 nucnce the free flow of informution lo und from lhc O IG orto 

fr11s1mtc the Hill nnd unfettered exchange between EPA p.:rsonncl nn<I the <)I( ; cJming the 

~tel ivc ph:m: ofnudits. 


My 1·xpccfnlio11 is thnl we will cooperate with !he 010 as fbllow11: 
I . Mnm1gc.:rs nnd :i1fl ff urc lo expeditiously provide ma!crial.i:: r1•sp1>11sivc: lo 1111 ()((J 

rnqllllSt ; 


2. Mnl1.;riull1 should bu prov ided to the OIG in lhe manner n:qucs1<:cl1 1';1 llt1:1· 1111111 ro11l~cl 


Ihrough :111 intc1 mcdi~H·y for review prior to disclosure; 

3. 1-:-pA mnnflgc.:rs 1111d staff must not conceal informal ion or ohstrncl OIC ~ nudits. 

invcstig11tion.; or other inquiries. Doing so is against EPA I olicy, .rnd 11111y he in 

viol:11i<m of fcdc1al I 1w, 

4. Al ony 1imc1 the 0 rG may have access tom ailablc informal ion such us 11>licy, 

guidance, p1occdu1c 1existing reports and other gcne.rnl infonnntion lo focw: its . 

plnns. In lhc contcxl ofspecific O[G audi-LS. evaluations or other 1-eviews, the C)ffi \',I If 

ordina1 ily issue u notification letter or kick-off memo to EP1\ mnnngcmcnl mmooncing 

the objectives of the OlG ncti,•ily. Frequ;!ntly. a meeting will he schcd11lr.1 I with l~P1\ 


management ond the Oler slaffto disclh"'S the activity. Under all 1 ircum tn11ccs, bPA 

nrnnagc1s ancl staff.?re In I rovide complete coopei-ation upon 1ccc:i11L ofsm:h 

noli licntion; :md 

5. EP1\ s1.1ffnic 110L rCltlliac<l to obtain permission from or i11fo11111111111agc1s bcforn 
lhcy c;pcak with ()((1 representatives during audits, cvalua1io11s, i11vcsligatin11~ or other 
0 f(i n:vicws. Stu ffmay, ol lheir own discretion, contuct thdr mnnagcr willt :111y 
qucs!ions rcgfl rding their responsibility to cooperate witli the 0f(l Ol' llJcil' SC hccluli11g 

http:schcd11lr.1I
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of meetings with rhe OfG, LJnless, in the context ofan invest igaliou, Ihey are instructed 
otherwise by OIG. fn the context of investigalinns, managers should 110t question staff 
about their interac1ions with the <HG. 

The 0 JG, /Or its parr, has indicatecl its intentto respect !he 11111ltiplc demands made upon 
EI' A managers and staff nnd, to the extent possible, to seek to accommodate sched~1J ing 
di fficuHies or other time co11straints that managers and Mriffs might face. t\ lso, Ille OIG is 
com milled to honoring requests for confidentiality lo the extent permillc<l by the law and to 
hand ling nil EPA doe11me11t.<; and informatio n in nn npprnprintc manner." 

your agency. 
documen t be dlstr' • fl a 

-~--,,..•-· ,-.. ....... .... .. -• f'... ... •i. ... ,....~,:-- ­ c n •• r ...... t--- ' "' ---­- ­



       

               
         

              
              

             
              
             

               
                

             
              

              
               

       

                
            

               
              

                 
    

            

               
              

              
  

                
            

                
             

                
     

              
              

               
              
              

             
   

 

 

    

    

                 
               

             
          

(b) (6), (b) (7)(C)
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(b) (6), (b) (7)(C), (b) (7)(A)
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H
H
S 
eller opined that (b) (6) (b) (7)(C) (b) (7)( '\.) 

had " illihcJd allegations or •mployec misconduct from lhe 0 I. f el!er 
further stakci I hat OHS had withheld al lega ti ons of employee misconduct from the lG 
once beforn, iti ng the John l ea le investiga1io11. Heller slated, ''co it became appa rent to LIS 

that now this is the second time OHS bad been working witb the FB[ for some 1iin on an 
employee misconduct inve tigation and they withheld that information from us, whiclt is a 
vioJati n four policy paten ially obsb.·uction ofjustioe. And so we wanted ro look into 
that." I 

Heller explained lhat was named as !he subject 
investigat ion bec~use "be was the person that we were, he was Lhe person Chat w~1s having 
Nie internc fi JJS with OHS . .. 80 when [ dra(led this that was tbe case. But we didn't lcnow 
who within HS it was go ing lo be ... Whether omebody was lei ling him that l1e had to do 
that or what.' Heller stated that her management assigoed the inv sligation to her, and 
they were aware she and - were runn ing !he case. The [G sent a rout ine 
noliiicalion about the invesligafion to the FBI but he case was nol 1 resented to a 
prosecutor. 

Hsi !er stated that shortly after the OIG began look ing into Che~ OHS 
withheld information from the OIG, the OIG teamed about the---Mem " 

hich Heller generally describe as a memo v ritlen by an EPA laGor attorney regarding 
and his authority Lo be an (Exhibit 8). Heller state that 

memo "brought a new issue UJ for us and it kind of became apparent th t 
we weren't go ing to be ab le to work forward or move forward will1 the orioinaJ issue or'the 
potenlial obstruction wiihOL1l addressing the .. . issue of (b) (6) (b) (7)(C) 

- [fowever; Heller stated lhe topic ofl"!t!"M authority, as it was discussed in the 
- Memo, was not an official .OlG case. Rather it was "sort of an offshoot of 
it . " he stated, "At the lim J we also found o"ut that .. . - was asically 

And so it just ra ise I Lhjs big issue or, coupled with the Joh n 
Bea le in fo rmati on it .. . became apparent that there were proba ly 111·my cases in wliich 
they weren 't provid ing employee misconduct i11forn1~tioJ1 to Lhe OI J. So we were looking 
at it from thal perspective." Heller fu rther stated, "So aU of the sudden, not all of the 
sudden but it b came apparent Lhat we, well we wanted to know. '""!!'1!!!'was oul 
there potentially that i,: e don t I now about We should 
!mow wh~l mployees authority L be 
rloing th is? And so that's, and so we started looking into that, too . Sul we did not op 11 up 
a new inves tigation for it" Heller explained that all f these maltt:rs invo lving OHS were 
incorporated into her case "by evoluiion." 

1 El A 6500, Functions and Activities of th ffice ofln~pector General, Chaj)lcr 3, Parngraph 2, stales" ·ach 
employee is responsible fo r promptly repot1ing indications of wrongdoing or i1Tegul11rity lo Lhe OIG and for 
cooperating and providing assistance dul"ing imy audit or i.nves1ig11tion." 

IFIC/1TIOiJ: 

JU 



fl JI r s1·1t d that prior to inl rvi wing- nu c!ob r 24, 'l 
inl r 1 ie t mploy •ilhin lhc EP rimin I Inv stig 
dctcrmin i~rkingfor ·P ID r H ,an 

- ·ilh his allornev 
!kine warning, which I'"'' 

de lination from the Department of Ju tic b 
wnrning. 

CATION: 
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11ulhor !he- 1 femo." fn preparation reated 
a Ii ·t f interview u sti ns U1al ere' arrov ly scoped'' to job n11d his du Ci s; Lhe 
qu sliun. \Vl.:L'O review d s ·vcral imes by IG man g ,m nt (l· hi it · ). I [eJler and 
lh I fi· I the r f alt •mpled lo schedule he i11tcrv.iew with - for sev >rr I w ks. SA 

Cl ll t: l' lo um ·ntcd her ffor!s in ,; Memorandum of A tivily, it eluding 111ai l attachments 
~xhibi I ). 1 lell r .stat ·d that an employc 's nrn nugcrs,m" tli 011 ly 0 11 c1i who an lake 

·1cti 11 aga in tan cmplo e ' ho doe not ooperale in an I i11vc ligation a11d sine. 
Mal I hew Fritz, puly hicf f taff, ~P , was the JG 
o 1gh his nssi tan c in arrangin~lt!""!" intervi \\/. Hell ·r b Ji v d thnt Fril.z ha ! 

conl:i ·tc W'' lo inform him I.hat be would b int rview d by the Of , b l [ {eJler id not 
I 11 v for ncl wJ1 et l er ·riLz notified -

The int ·view of- lnsted llu: or fou r hours. Heller sla cd 1
'. o f'lhnl lllrec: to Cour 

hm1r. , 11 ay ~ 0110 hou r fit he wa. nctu ii lly providi11.,, LL wi th infonnn1ion. The res o[ i t 
wn: 11. lt.:avin the r om for 20 minutes while t:hey .. ' 11 I his utt rn y w T llaving 
• 1 v ·r ution which i fine. hat's fair enough. T would havr, b ·c.:11 h n: nil night. ut 
lhal' · hy ill I s< long. · 

I II r lat cl lhallh 

11 

! 
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Wlrnn 1!1'" Lo!cl the OLG agent · he had lo /e;ive duel ·hild care issues !l1e agent, 
responded lhey were not finished with the interview and st ill had a !ot f questions. Heller 
Hnd Im left the room and ,, ri in the room wilh ltllh'"::md 
H!t"W!t' Other OIG managers walked in imd ouL offhe room. Heller described 1h scene:: 
at the end of the interview 11s "completely just " sbow." At some point, !If!'§? !e!l 1111 I 
!lfl'§? escorle~ out of the bui lcli1{g. Heller stated tJ1at wit11i11 five m inutes f 
realizing dmt

Agre
~ 

jB!ijp 
I ft, Heller realized that she did not have him sign a Non-

Di closure DA) ( ··xhibit 12). Heller wanted - to sign a NOA ecause 
sho did not want discussing the interview wilh anybody xcept for his attorney, 
especially n_ot his coworkers. Heiler testified, "[A]s a routine we have all employet,s s ign 
non-disclosure agreements when we're: conducting employee rn iscondlict cases. However, 
this particular interview was anything but ·outine, espe0ia!ly towards the end. It was 
comp letely just a show. There were so many moving parts that Ijust forgot. Aud as soon 
ns I realized it 1 b,clieve [ called his lawyer.' Heller did not know what plJone number she 
cliale I when she trjec! to reachf"'!!R, but she stated, "1 wou Id imagine [had her card." 
Heller stated she die! not recall Lrying to call Im tu renci f!!@!!W;' l thought that [ 
called her. It could have been thatl didn't really have service and 1 lried to call her And [ 
realized I didJ1 1t have service. And so it ou1d have been and then I didn't ca! ! Im .. .r 
e11en remember J want to say it was ringing, but I'm not sure. And then when I didn't get a 
hold of her l ike I just knew lhat every secon counted as far as him getting back to bis 
office and potentially discussing it with others. nd so because f wasn't going to be asking 
him any questions and because the fact that he had his attorney being present was a 
courtesy to begi1 with, I didn't fi el i1. was necessary to have his attorney present for him lo 
sign lhot non-disclosure and to advise him of the fact that he shouldn't be discussing the 
interview ·with anybody. So T didn't think she needed to be lhere to begin with, but my 
inilial reaction wa just to call her." Heller staled she di not intentionally wait for 
Hit"" to leave before baving - sign !heNDA. 

l-Te lJ er sl'ated she did not know whether the f G Agent's Mr111ua I c-;.onlaim:d policy regar lii1g 
the 1sc ofNDAs. However she slated it was their routine operating pro edure to use 
N ·s, and she ha issued approximately 25-30 oflhem lo ~PA employees during her 
ten me at the or . Heller stated she has encountered employees who refi 1sec! to sign the 
NDA, "But it Joesn t change (111:: fact that I've advised lhem .'' 

At 6:00 or 6:30 p.111., within approximately :live minut~ o~depmting lhe OIG office 
after his interview, Heller an went to lhe OH ' ofCice. Heller 
statecl their pm]Jose in going lo HS was ',To advise him '"er'!''not to discuss what we 
had talked about in Lim interview with anyone and to have hi1 11 sign the non- I isc!osure 
agreement" Heller look I'll" because it i. standard practice in the 01 1 for agents to do 
things in pairs for protection and to have a witness. Hel ler and I'll" walked to the f. S 
office, which is in a separnte wing of the EPA complex. When they arrived, Heller noted 
the door to th suite was 1111loclced. She cal led out, "Hello," but she did not get a response . 
..:ihe eventua lly enc un tered a man, who she lal r learned was 1 standing in a 
cubic!~. She then 11oticedlll]f!!,stand ing jn lhe hallway by the doorwuy of an office. He 
was with a woman who Heller Inter learned wa · (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) . Heller heardB'" 
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Wjlfiams lasted 30 seconds to a minute. Heller did not recall whclher lf!"' said 
a11ything during the exchange. Heller lid not believe Williams used any profonity, and he 
did not threaten to hurt or hit her. However, Heller f It that Willi;1111s' "physi al pres n e in 
my space and the way that he was, I fej( Ii <ewe 11 eded lo leave in order to save ourselves 
from' l otential!y bnd situation.' Heller slat d ' f.f was swearing. His ra ·c was red. Hi 
ve ins w ·re bulging. He was like spitting." he slt1tcd that Wi lliams' lrnncls were up, and 
she clarified that he noted thai one of his fingers w;i pointing nt her, but ll ht; did not know 
what he as doing ith his otlwr hand. 

The walk from OH' back to the OfG office look approximately 5-7 minutes, and r~Ieller did 
not recall what she and let"' discussed during their walk. They went straight to l f 
Patrick uJlivan's office. She recalled Sullivan and!lm wer present when she recounted 
the events at OHS. HeJler did not recall exacily wJ1al Su lli van said in response, but "it 
became an issue of did thi s employee just assa tll t one of our agents and we need to mov 
forward and get some statements right now as far as what just happened." [-lei ler staled 
that she believed she had been assau lted. he did not recall whether she first used the word 
"assmrlt" or if one fthe other agents firlll used that word to describe what ha I ha_ppe11ecl. 
,j1e clefmecl assault as, "Actions laken towards somebody that wo dd make lhem feel afraid 
or intimi la ·ed ... Actions verbal or physic I actions. So lhal could be ... 'l'm going to hurt. 
you in a calm tone of voice, or it can be screaming al somebody up in their face." ' WlPn 
a ked. whether Heller believed Wi lliams might hurt her or make physical con tact w~th her 
during the incident, Heller responded, "Honestly, I couldn't ever think." 

I eller was aware other Q[G agents were sent to OHS fo llowing th, i11cident between her 
and Williams; she WEl • aware - f!nd l"!!' were mnong the .r.igent.s who were sent, but 
she dicl not know wlio else went. She was not really involved in the discussi 11s a out 
·ending those agents to investigate hat lrnd happened because she was focused on 
documenting what had happ ned. Heller sMecl that slm wrote a st<:1tement llrnt evening 
( :.xhibit 13). 

rhe following day, on Octo er 2 , 20 l3, Heller was interviewed by agents of the l'edcr1:1 I 
'rotecti v Service (FPS). The interview last cl at least an 11our, and the agents prepared a 
report (Ex11ibit ~4). 

1 f Iler stufed Ll1at prior to October 24, 2013, she was awnxe Williams had made complaints 
about the .IG pertaining to agents having S I clearances, but she di t not know to wl1om 
b complained. [-Ie l! i::r slated she had no knowledge of the hist~ry etween H a11d th 

lG when she slarte I her investigat ion ancl she thought Im also had no knowledge. 
' herefore, she 1hought it was good they were runn ing th investigation. 
When asked to ciari fy wl1y she suggested in her Congressional teslim ny that Williams 
may have attacked and intimidnted her because she wa a female Hefler slated, "Becaus f 
1I1e l wo of us standing there he was yelling at me and h got up in my [ace, and I l 00 
Jercent believe that if I were a man he wouldn't have done that. He didn't get ir .. 

face. He dicln 't yell at him. He didn't even look at llim. I robably because .... __ _ 
who he probably didn't want to mess with . f eller stated I'll" was standing 
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7. n cl b I' ,2 111 , attcmplcdl i11lcrv icw f"'!!''' bulb 
d clim: ! tu I e interview d without being compelle I. 

8. (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

n 

nt d tha he nm.J - wcr in ulli ·11 's ullic wh ·n Heller dlld 
r ·turned from ~t Heller \ u "vi ibly upscl," umJ she told 

lhcm. r w.1 · j rst a· ·a tlte,l ltere·" 1md "[ couldn l do my job.' .. did noL r~cnl l how -
lI lier d ·s ·iib cl hat had just happened to her and he rccall-'d--"l·ind of' greeing 
' ith g JlL l r. I c (IC lier). " - fwther staled," n r -- ag i11, 1tty 111 ·111 ry h r -- C 
bcli vc (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) am back with her as weH, and he was 'y oh hey, bis just ___ .... ... . ____ _
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happen eel.' nd she was talking about, ou know, her chest and b ing poinled at, [guess . 
And who else was in then::? [can't say for sur if any nc lsc wa: in ih •re." 

Ila l s1 ifit::d lhat based 011 Heller's re1Jort, SulJiv·m dei;id d 0 [G (lg en ts needed to go and 
get witness. fatcments. Therefore, ·,(!!lei - were dispatched to 

1~rs io interv iew Wi lf iams and anyone else who wa there. Upon arriv ing at 
or~rsJ!lll noted that tbe door to the suite was locked, bu1110body ;.n1swerecl when the 
[tgcnls ca lled out, "Heflo." According to I"!!!' state111ent, Will iHrns and - "came 
br1skly down the ba ll" and "was blurting out, 'What's go ing un J1er ?"' ~been in 
meetings wilh Wi ll iams and I'll" before, so they knew the ag nls workc ! for the OTG. 
- stated that the volume of Williams' voice was "elevated" compared to the other 
times they had interacted; - furtherstatecl ihat he believed Wi! J i~1ms respected the 
agents' posilions but once they tri ed to separate the OHS employee and inte[view them, 
Wil !inms "got loud and oisterous" -,md snid, 'Tm cal ling the FJ3L' 

.. stated he and Im attempted to iriterviewlm, but Williams was "being loud and 
not wanting anyone to talk ta anybody.' Mea·nv,1hHe-- -.: anted lo hear what illiams 
was saying. - stated, ' hat I rem~mber is us just Lrying to calm lhe silualion down. 
['ve been in law enforcement for overlB years_ and we were trying t de-escalate -­
everyone that f - 'hey;\ ere just trying to get statements and talk what 
happened." Im 

o~on 
and - separa edlla fron \i illiam" and._ and brought 

him into conference room in U1e OHS suite. llm initially wanted to cooperate, bul 
Williams mad statements su has, "are you comfortable? l'm thi pers n's L am lead[.f' 
- stated, "T felt it was interfering with an investigation .. . because we were trying to 
taJ!c to n p rs.on, and we weren't able to do that because h · 111.0Ved· into !hat area. A nci he 
wa not cooperative with the 0U1er agenls because they wanted Lo talk lo bi1 J ." did 
not fee l Wil liams' conduct was int imidating, but " it was very c.Jisrnptivc .' j11d icatecl 
there was no phys ic::.il contact between Williams and the agent8 ... testified," [ think he 
recognized who ( wns and he recognized- becm1. c w bud 1net wiili him on 
different issues, you know on-- with security and sL1ch _ And I lh ink he n~spc~tecl us 
enough .• - stated, "l d'dn'tfeel threatened or intimidntecl. r foltdisr 1ph:d." 

While were in the HS space l'!!P was "kind of 
the 1..:00! head ifyou

I'"'' 
·wi!J -- and, 'hey, a lot has happened can we do ihis another uay[.J"' 

- did not recall saying anything to Williams or trying to calm !Jim down . 

9. n ctober l 6, 2014, ---conducted an interview ofl!I'!!'"' 
- (Exhibit l 7). - stated that he has been a law ~nforcemcnt of 1cer for 
approx imately I years, of which approximately . years was a· an officer with Ill!' 
-- •••g stated that during his lime a h was involved 
in "dozeus of us of force incidents ... physica l altercations, fi gh s ... I've seen nnd been 
inv Ive in mm1y, many." 

I'!!" stated I hat on the even ing of October 24, 2013, he wa in the office and was asked 
to accompany He ll er Lo get a document signed by a witness in the EPA Office of J-Iomeland 
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At i-bi. point in the i11terview I'll" forma lly adopted a statement be rim !led on October 
24, 20 J 3, soon after the incid 11t occurred (Rxhibit IS). fn this s1<1temcntJ!!@ll"indicated 
!hat in hi s estimation Williams' conduCt rose to a criminal violat ion of 18 lJ. '.C. § 11 I , 
'Assaulting, resisting, or 

I'"'' 
impc ling certain offit;ers of employec.s".8 When nsked to 

ari i cu]fll e his rensot ing, s_tated that Wi1 liall1 .<: "activity and his beh<J vi or w11s, uh, 
intended only to interfere with her, u11, official invest igatio11" ... "I think llrnt he, his intent 
was to impede through intimidation.' When asked why he didn t arrest Williams, l'llT 
indicated that because Williams was a senior official, nnd because he never touched [-Jcl!er, 
and arrest "would make ii n bi 0 ger deal tban it already was.' 

· g~nt s Note: Tn f!!@ll'I!' adopted statement, he indicates thal Williams was 
pointing at HeJler s face not her breasts . He also described Willinms as 
"sweating profi.isely", an observation he 

mrr·e·-October 16, 2014. who ' f he statement fi.irthwho
did not make dming his interview on 

er id

nght" 
r entifies a female, later identifi ed a. 

was in an office i~dicated stated 'tha_t's 1:ot 
suggested !hat because&'· was m an office the entire l11ne, 

her view was obstn1cted and he did not think she saw Wi !foims' threntening 
actions. 

When asked about his observations of (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
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l'llT had no recollection of- , m - making comments to / illiams 
about his behavior, but again suggested that- was e0 ging him (Williams) 
on ... she was fueli1:ig whatever hi s fire was." 

When asked Lo descri e Heller's demea11or on the walk bacl lo EPA OfG orfice spaces 
after the incident with Williams, I'll" described her as "upset", !.nit not "ovt~rly irate'', 
summing tip his observat ion as ''nothing remarkable.' 

Wjth regard to his observati ons possibly co11flicti11g with Heller's observations l'llT 
indicated th at Heller's account is "more accurate probably than wlrnt I recDI J. .. She probab ly 
gave you more detai 1 than what [ saw. Because my thought was'. what the heJ I is going 11 

here? This is out of control." Thai' , that was my perspective." 

LO. n0ctober23,2014 (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) and l'll" interviewed ~' (Rxhibitl9). 
- indicated that he was ass i,.,11ed as co-case agent to (-Teller s investigation Chat i11vo lv · 
the interview of 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
- described the SCOjJe of that investigation as 

------

I 
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ill\' ·~ligating all 'g.ili ns th t II vas opcrnling cwlsidc f ii , uth rifi ·; llmt~ 
• J rating rnrt'iid of his amhoriti; and IIS' u c or n n disclosur ugr cmenl ·. 

inc Ii ·ntl!d, though thnt lh · s ope of theB'' int ·rvi on l b ·r 2 • 20 I was ery 
n:irrnv focu ing only n his roles and duties vithin 11 . 

i h ri:g rd t the I · isi 11 l pr vide KaUcines ,1arnin • to ~ ithout first 
I I rininu le li11ution rn m !he Department of .lusli ·, 't. l J ", 0 [ ~'PA-( r ] 
rnrrnngc.m nt llio11ght it\ ::is bcsl to issue KHll ine. and rlrnl s wlwl we did." \ ith regard to 
Id'!\ f 'ng nt's 11sc fnn n-clisc!osureagr '111·111, !m .tntcdthtll"itwus 1pt our 
dis 'r I.inn, you J now r:is (o who we bad, you know, sign th . 111 r 11of. " 

All •r !he int rvicw wit!1 I'!!" Im escorte 1 I'!!" HUorn y ut rthc building then 
!Cl urned lo r LL ullivan s office. He was in the ofli hen rre11 r ~rnd I'"!' return d 
from l T '. .. cs rib d [Jcller as "upset. Y u kn v, sh \ :is very UJ set... When 
nsk -cl t , rli nlati.: v hat he bserved,lm ta! 'r do1 't no' if sh had bl!en crying or 
\\a' 0 llin rea y r. 1 know. on the verge of crying, but u know. I c uld lell there was 

me \ ells in her cy · ·. he was ... her hand w r h king a I it. hewn ... you kflow. there 
w ... h r voic was r mbJing. You know, she ' v ry ups t. • 

- 1· led that he\ a· Ii ly che first one to u 1.: lh lerm" s 
Im 

uh" t scribe I I lier s 
·'I n nc i1h \1 illiam . indicated th th then look cl at A[ 1I ullivan an said 
w ve i 1 t ha I 11 nssa11ffon u fedem[agent..." '•c ol t do some1hin n out thi . \ e' ·e 

L lo handle lhis sil iation.' ullivan then disp tched (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) . to 
IJ, l inveslignt . 

Im lated Lb l ll ·wall ·din to lhc OHS suite lirst Dnd was m L by Willinms, wl <> w lked 
luwnr ! lllt!'"vcry ng1'ressiv !y '. Im then walked low1ir l William~ "very nggr ss ively". 
Wor ls wcr 0x l1rn 1g ·d dming which Wil liams allt:g dly q11 e tionc lit"!!!' nillh rily to be 
in llio nffic ·. Im d ·s 'l' ib c::d Williams at th is point As "i;xlre1 11ely, vi:ib ly upset. T-Ic was 
piss ·cl. fl is race wus n.: I ·ind he wa<>. just. . .Lie was r1ngry. u ,ouJ I t 11. 1 111 ''111 y u know 
\ h •n you sc an u11gry m·1n. !Ie was an ru1gry nrnn." 1 !er.Im wn: n ·/ cl 11 w h snw a 
r I face 11 .1 black p ·rson. Im stated "So may c I misr pr s 
Im 

nl ti th L lher · .... , bul 
fu11h r indicat d Williams had a relati\-eJy lighl 01 1 I ·xi n. 

----·-- --
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point, - said lhat he w<1nte I lo talk i. - lead - in to a c.:onfereJJc room 
along with ll'P'"f At that point, Wil li::mv nllegc.:clly came.in Lo the conferem:e rno m .•nying 
"Don't say a word to them . Y.ou clorr't have to talk to !hem. Y 11 re not go ing to talk to 
them. ' 1111!,addressed 1illiarns, warning Williams' if you don't get out of here right now, 
you' re g ing lo jail lorJigbt ... Yot1 re intt:rfering with an investigation and l'lll not going l.o 
Jmve it. .. ' I'll!' then lead WiJJiams out of the conference room, and Im aoain 
;1(tempte<l lo interviewltll'' Williams c11tered the room again, al wh ich po'Ti1~lillll 
allegedly pu lled out hi, handcuffs and stated "You're g ing tojaiJ tonight." m;;tccl that 
~f'"I" stopped him by placing his banrl on l!t!"P chest find s-tc'llcd "No, w ' re not go ing to 
Jo this." At that point the four agents /ell , HS spaces. 

llm stated lhat aJI [our agents then met in ullivan 's office. hen Su llivan ;isked what 
happened- stated "my supervisor stopped me from affecting an arrest, th;.it's what 
happened.' - incl ic;:ited that at some later lirn~ apologized to him for stopping 
the arrest, acknowledging that he took away from_.-aulhority. 

With regard to his knowledge of EPA-OTG agents compelli11g interv iews, Im was asked 
whether the -< PA-01 had the authority to compel an interview of an employee, or whether 
Umt authority resided\ ith the employee's supervisor. lllstated "The --P/\.-OIG, I'm 
fairly certain.-.. there was a po licy within EP that they were required to cooperate with the 
( on administrative investigation' and that tliey cou ld be terminated if they did not." 

With regard to the EPA Inspector General's rnle in the•'" inlerview,. related Lhal at 
one point during that interview, be and Heller became frustrated be ause was re!i 1sing 
lo answer qLtestions. Im and Heller went lo see Sullivm1, and advised him thatlet'" was 
not answering questions. Accord ing to - SulJivan paid a visil lo the Inspector General . 

and Heller were then told that the 1 wns instructing- to answer the questio11s. 

• was unable to recall who adv ised him of the IG' direction. He knew it was not 
Sullivan, and he lrnew it was not the tG. 

nNovember 24, 2014, lm sent an email to with <Jn a tachecl s igne~ 
w ritten statement (Exh ibit 20). ln hi s emai l, verified tlrnl the st<ltement was wriUen nn 

cto ber 24, 20 13 and signed by him on Nov mber 2l 20 14. 

11. On ctober 30, 2014, (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) anclfet'" interv iewed (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) (Exhibit 
21). [n October 201 3- was the at El A-OIG 
who was responsible for among other offi e , the Office of Profess ional Respon!iibility 
~'.~as investigating a complaint lhat Uie EP. !G r~~eiv~d fron_i - . 
- alleging thr1t conducl111g outside 
of his authority: ller'P 

was 1 1~1 t1t-s 
stated llrn.t Hel ler was interviewing---un October 

24 20 13 to determine the scope 0- du!iec . understood that upon the . 
oncJusion or the interview, Heller forgot to give a n n-disclos ire advisement. 

Sometime after the interv iew concluded, Heller and went to the Offic(, of 
Homeland. ecurity (OI S) office spaces to adm inister that Advisement to I'll" 
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An !I' hearing what had occurred, AIGl ullivan wantc PR ng nls I r turn t HS and 
clel rmin the n1 ·t. wha happened. l'!l"stat~d lbat lw clir 1 ·d (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

- rutd 1m ther ag nl he couldn•trecaH to accompany him back tn OH 'spac to 
CICiCiTii in the Ii 

'• I'"'' 
Is. Wh n nsked if anv the fours m cl ups •l luring lhc wrilk ver l 

TT spac icfenlilicd - as "fairly up.set', ul not ' 111 uly upsel'. 

on ent rin the I J,' space, the four ncoun red an individunl l tcr icknlifiu:I as I'"'' 
- n I v ·r · then appr nched by William ond ncl - engaged 

11 
~illium an f!!@!!'!t'v.hilelm and the: fourthag~n ngagcd iti~-

sl led th11l "the minute Steve illiam saw u ·he uh, b cnmc ,. ry h lligerent.' 
ut I her descri c I illiams "hollering" for th m t t ut o hi· spn e. i11iam 

c,,edly all mptcd to interfere with the int rview drnl lm nn l 1h fourlh ag nt ere 
ondu ling with describe \ illiam 'rep te ly" in rrnp i11g th 

i11te1view , telling ither not to talk to th ag nl • c r lhal he fidn'c h ve Lo 
lulk lu the ag nt. . stated that between William bcllig ·r 'Ill unprofi s ional 
I ·lrnvi rand hi in! L •rencc with tlle agents job, he considerc I orr sting Wil limns but 
inst ad lcc i led to I ··av· the s1 ace and. follow up thr 1gh olh r hnnn Is. 

slat ti llrn - M1s not lh fast to mnk contact with V illinms und llrnll@I"' 
wcrn nlway. in etwee1- and Williams. I'"'' lrnd 110 re ·o !J ect i n of 

w~rning Willinn1s to top interfering or risk ing arr I d and hod nor ollection f 
t ppr nching Willinms with intent 1 effect an arr st. 
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indicated made the decision 11ot to arrest Wj ll iams. Im ~ecal!ed that 
after the event, he and AIOI Sulli van discussed t.liat perlrnps they should have arrested 
Wil Iiams for interrupting their investigation. However, they dec'idecl lhat because they were 
in an office setting, il1Cy were dealing with EPA employees, and "tensions were hot," they 
did not arrest him. Ila also pointed out that an attorney f"'!!R'"'' W<!-S wesent, and she 
stated she would Jmve prefetied that the interv iews take place the next clay. 

l 3. On November 6, 2014~ andlet'" interviewed (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) (Exhibit 23). 
Prior to the interview,~ the agents with a 7 page "Memorandum for Record" 
dated November 6, 2014 (Exhibit 24) . - prepared this memo from notes, an initial 
memorandum he began creating ri ght after the incident, and an email he c.lrn1:1ed to Juan 
Reyes at l l: 1 OPM on October 24, 2013 (Exhibit 25) . Ila stated thal he did not actually 
complete the memorandum until November 6, 20 14. 

On the evening of October 24, 2013, - was working infos cubicle when. entered 
the space and began ta lking witb Williams an~ in Willim11S' office. observed 
that l'!!" appeared "upset" and "emotional". Agents T-(eJlerl""' learned her mune when 
she introduced herself to Willia.ms) and learned hi s name from a11 

investigative report drafted by the Federal Protective Service) entered the office through the 
main door had never seen either agent previously, and didn't know who they were. 
When heard them, he approached them and the three met in front ofl"'ft cubicle. 

stated tlrn1!!f"RP was leaning against a cubicle wall , Heller was st.,W to his left, 
and was standing in front of them. Heller was asking lo speak with privately, 
and let"' ~jftT&jcl that he wouldn't speak with them without his attorney present. 
According t there were multiple iterations of Heller asking this question, and lfer"? 
responding the same each time . - indicated that aid noth ing during these 
exchanges. At some point, both Wi lli ams and engaged with Heller, questioning 
Heller's purpose and reiterating that was not going to speak with the agent without his 
atto rney. was able to see T-Iellerand l@t'" butwas unable to see Williams 
and at this time. At lliat point, told Heller tllilt she could say whatever 
needed to be said in front ofl""ft WiJliams, andf"'!!m Heller told - he was not 
allowed to disclose any of the information regarding a recent interview to anyone. He ll er 
mentioned that when she entered the spact;, she heflrd - discussing the interview with 
Willimns andf"'"'" - responded with questions to clarify lllis direction, such as 
whether he could speak to any EPA personnel, his wife, etc. Heller to ld him that he could. 
~c with anyone except his attorney. Heller di~! not produce any docume1:t f01_· 
... signature, nor did she use the words "non-d1sclosurn agreement" or "discJauner". 
Rather, she simply to lei - what he was allowed and not allowed to do. l'!!"noted that 
I'll" appeared to be getting increasingly upset and frustrated . Will iams began question ing 
Heller's authority, and asked ber to put her request in writing. I'"!' also made a few 
statements 

I'll" 
at this point, expressing confusion as to whntI-Ieller's authority was. At some 

point, threw up his hands and walked away. 

____________ ___ _ 
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I lace I WilL m.· !hr lo four foct away fo m {foll · durin lhi Jrnngc. H estimated this 
di tnnc' bas on I is later observaliou of lfeller; U ·mpling r sl1t1k lrnnds wilh illiams, 
les ribing lh di I n ·as' .sha in:. distai1 e". - s ·r ed \ illi. 111 I ointing \1 ith his 

1 igltl han I . l ;m: n,i.:1 Ii: m [feller toward the mnin door of tic oflic spa e ash directed 
tht;ag 11t·tol~1~c.lescribedITell r trtndi11 al\l illi 111 l': a11dpointingat 
Villi m11s 2:0 . ~tcd LJmt Willinm~ Jid no point ir ctly nt J feller, · 11 I pointed 

1 ' • r I lh ·do r wi11l his arm bent and rrol. trnighl. •""slat l llrnl fro1ir•nerspective 
Willi· 111 ' lnlll I 11 vcr am any closer than I inchc.'i ·1way rom Tlellcr. observed 

I gc1 l I n[ 0 en 'II r) did not appear threat ned in uny wriy that 1 cou ld le! !. I did n t se 
nny you kn w, sudd 11 r n ·ti on or movcmcnls on h ·r bcha If. l fain' 11 tice any steps 
b11ckw·1rd, n r di I uoticc St ve Williams ·losing any spac1.:. l""R 11oted that if 1 eller had 
tnlun I t Ii buck war I, sh woul<l likcly have left his fi Id of view. 

B'" I s rib d let'P and Heller's dcm anoras' insist nl, but pt frssi nnl. 1 her \ as 
nothing I would harncterize a· unprofessional u ut 1heir I mean r ... n1c content of lheir 
stmer 1 Ill I \'l'OUI iew as un rofessional and l don tun lcrslond whnl thc rntionalization 

for not pr iding th documentation lhaL's r f rred lo ut their d 11 ea.nor and l e 
arricd lhe1 1sel s was professional.' 

shak \ illiams' hand. I as at 

1 uring rhc n lml •r bclween Will iams and lb agents Im les"rtb ·J Willim l voice as 
"mor · 'le vat· I th·111 a convers<itional lone, but mon.: f the lone wn ·• T will say in the 
·mplrn is a. nppo.<.;ccl to lhe voluim.: ... more ofa tone of au!horily, n,; Ii <c ;i tnili! ry 

1; mnrnnclc;r r r1 sen i >r· g vi~rnment official wou ld hav wh .n mpltnsizing <1 polnl d10t is nol 
, cttin !hr t1 3h . ' - did not notice any sp i!tle 0111 i11, fr m William!-!' mnuU11 nor cl ·c.1 he 
1 olicc uny pr ft1s, swenting or bulging veins nor rlid Ile noti · anythi11g lhut lo k d like 

illi·1ms' fi c turning r I. - noted 'T-i has a ry J ud v i c; ho vcr l've nev r 
·ec1 1 him us a !1 ud voi ·.when expressing a point or lrying lo m k n ... clis · 1ssi11g an item. 

f profi s i 1 111 r I van . Only ime I 'v e r seen him you I now. I llld ruse n oom ing 
i .. wh ·n h 's xcitecl or telling a story n doing omething i1 a much more r !axed and 

eas g in mnnner. ' 

indi .nlion of 
unmincnl." 

1\l lhc ng nL': r ·qu • made a ket h of the r !alive I cations for himself, f"'!!R 
11 ·lh.:r, illiams, and his sketch is in !ucled 11 Exhibit 26 . 

t. 
----, 
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A pprnxi111ately 25 minu lcs alter [-feller and I'll" dt:pn rted, fo11r i11dividunl.c; enl -red the 
space. They approached and informed hin1 lluil tht:y were invcstig11ii11,. an fl.'>snu l! ihat 
)CCU rred previously. i.11dicated lhat 0011e l)f f lie incl ividuals I roduct:d i.;rcdcn ti;ils or 
identified himselC An agent later iden11•-nsllm::rskecl if he was 
present earlier in I he evening, lo which slated llmt he wa . lold .. they 
were investigating an a saull and w uld ncffflf!!Sk v ilh wcl 110 id -·a what 
assault could have ccurretl. Williams and !hen came out f WilliHrns' office and 
<ill four individuals went to meet them. Tw agents, lalcr iclenti[iecJ fls Im nnd IS!"' then 
broke nwa 1 to s eak withlS!"' Im advise I that - had to subm it to on in terview at 
that t;me. - ; nd kated that g;ven the Hm- ;d tint wa nt tn subm ;t In >Ill ;n terv iew and 
wou ld prefer to rescJ1cclule for anolber time. to ld - "We need l.o spcn lc to you 
now.' ll"!l":iescribcd- ~s "very insislenl and <.lggressive in his lone wi1li me ... Agent 
il!ll became more insistent and started threatening !hat [ would be obslnr ling an (G 
investigation if [did not pr vide them immediate test imony a11d that administrative pemilties 
cnn include me losi110 my job . .. " IJ""!'1skec!l"!!".vhat regulation or rcq 1ireme11l 
compelled him to cooperate at that moment, b1Jdli"'"clicl not produce :my such requirement 
but rather continued insisting llia. had to comply compe01: lif would be in obstruction fan TG 
investigation. On tw oc ·asions, stated "['111 u to !est ifv." /\t no poi11t 
lid il!ll prov ide any written advisements or warnings f.o When Im stated "So 

you re obstructing the investigation" and began writi11g 1.hings down 11!11 '-lgrccd to lhc: 
in terview. 

- led- ami ltl]f!l'fi n to a conference room and losed the door. As - was 
ns cing the first queslion, (he door lo the couference room was opened 
lhe doorway, <Jsking iflS!"!1vas okay.!liS!'= tal d he wn1•- and illi;:ims stood in 

William· looked at !he 
<1gents in Che room, then as! eel- again if he wns okay. ansv.r·red thnt he 
preferred to be intervii:.:wed nt another lime at wfl'ir)ff!t Williams 8l::lte I"/\ ll right, ihis is 
over. ' At tlrnt point, <Jn agent later identified as somehow signa led Lo lhc other 
rigents, <i nd they departed. lll''statecl that he never saw or he<i rd anyth ing I hat sugges ted 
to him that Williams might be arrested by- gents tlu1l 11ighl, <.1ml when Willirnn: opened 
th conference room d or. l1e did n't he9r s:iy a11yihi11g to him. l"!!!?desc ribed 
Williilms' demeanor ancl tone of voice as "normal" during lhis entire episode. He rec, !Is thal 
Willi.:ims opened the conference room door only one-. With regard to his de is ion to submit 
to U1e interview, lmstaLc! "The only reason f submilted to providing lhal inl -rview and 
that witness testimony at thal time was because I was repeatedly threatened wilh my ·ab ... he 
sa id ifI did not provide testimony immediately tlrnt [ would be obst111cling a11 inspect r 
general investigalion nnd tli!'ll pe1rnlties go up to 1rnd include losing my jub." 

Tl1e following week l'!!!'was interviewed by th Feclern l Protective Service (FPS) about 
Lhe incident on the even ing of October 24, 2013. M<itthew f<'ritz later provided - with a 
copy of the FPS investigativ report aml the FP~' aJTicluvit in support of <111 arrest warrant' for 
Williams (Exhibj 27). h n h reviewed lbe FP. r port :ind affidavit, "T w::1s om '\ lmt 
incredulous at how my testimony to them was clrnraclerizccl and l believe misrcpr senled., 
- identified the following discrepancie between wh<1 he told FPS mid what FPS lat r 
reported: 



·1 he l·P 11 r p 1L s!11lc:d - . "i11 li.1rn c I agent. lhat illhm 'J ·11 111m did not appc· r 
1111 • l nin ; h w .v r, h di I fe• l lhal il was umv I n ing nnd I 111011strnl ·din u I me, n i· 

whi h w ul I not bear proprintecl ( ic) in an ffice n 1ir nm 111." - sfal cl "I didn 
b •11 ve llrnf. hi.~ b lrnvior was inappropriate then or 11ow untl I don L [ 11ow what part of my 
lnl mc·11l 11lcl'v b 1.n 11. tmed to s<ly LhaL .. This did not ri s l nnywltcrc I! <ir !he bar of 

m1y lhi11g lose to i1rnp1 roprinlc, nor cerla inly thrca1·c11i11 ." 

14. 

----~--
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illi. ms sr d :11 pt x imatcly l 2 
lhal '> /t.,;n \Villinms was pointing 
s of If lier. 

me .1in 

·oil win• lhal 1 l' li11g, th 
bt i11 d nrnils l 11gi11g l 
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llJI''" believed lhe OIC was "j usl fishing fo r infonnnlion r<::lated to lhe FHI 
investigations." 1111 stated "fT]hi · ' ''! cpi ·ode kind of bri11gs il a II lo ah •m1, and 
lhe11 from there stmts a series oLwd·il s <111d inveslioation.s rn1d eva[ualio11s which lead up to 
this request l'or me l be inlervi ·wed nbout (b) (6) (b) (7)(C) 

llJI''' state I lhat he received an ema il from Drnke (Heller) stal i11 g that she needed to 
interview him. I c in .fo1 !ly re ponded that he, i]Jjams, and )lfJ't!P would mcc.:L with 
Heller, but He ller responded Urnl she on ly wan(·cd to meet with I'"" 1111d she did not wisl1 
to meet with Williams and 1'1!". 1111 questioned his leadership about the matter, 
inclu ling Reyes and Deputy hiefof taff rvfatt Frilz, imd Fritz confi rme 1 that the 01 
wanted to interview concerning his duties in l-[S and the r 'nson Ii r having a 

. 1111 th ughl it would be more ;1pproprinle for the 
JO to contact Human Hes urccs or ol11ers involved in the hiring t recess hccau ·e ­

simj ly applied for and as offered his job. c erthcless, lhe [Q i11siste::d 011 i11terviewi11g 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) described the f as "cagey," find he su rmi ·ed that the lid not want lli111 
to !mow what the interview would be about. 

(b) (7)(>\.) (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) so he informed hi management prior to lite interview that J1e 
would not be able to talk about those matters. While Fritz and Reyes verc awa re of the 
interview, lhey never directed- Lo participate. They s:~ i d al so1 ie point it wou ld be a 
good idea (f r - to be interviewed) We would like you to do it, something like tlml, 

utihey never put th · ir foot down and sa id, ' ou will go talk to them, you know, 
tomorrow."' fn fact, Reyes, W ill iams llf'"'' anci,Jmssibly fritz informectft'' that he 
was not required LO patiicipate in lhe interview. ftS'discussed th or ·. authority with 
IBmwho informed him that "TGs don't di1:ccUy nrnnage you or supervise you. They 
can l tel I you to do this or to do lliat. They have lo go through your management l do !hat 

1 y can't directly discipline you. They can encourage or re ommi::nd to yot1r supervi s rs 
cl iscip ! i ne based on facts or i nveslig(ltions o;· aud its, whatever they' re doing. ' ev rlheless, 
nobody told - that he should not pnrlicipalc in the infer icw. 

In September 2013, a series of enmils nsued b lwcen Heller n11d1i91 in which J- cHer 
· tlempled lo schedule Lhe interview. 1111 testified lliat 1-IeJJer instrucr·ecl hi111 lo show up 

n certain dat and he responded that he wanted 
1111 

t talk lo an attorn ·y because "I-his sound· 
like more than just a casual conversation:' stated, "S at some point she bu. i c~lly 
expected me to show up on X date and I didn't show up and teve Willjams and B and 
Ill all Jrnew that I wasn t 0 oing lo show up and r believe somebody even commu11icatecl 
that to Drake (I-Ie l!er), but she then wrote me back and basically the next day or maybe art r 
the time had passed anci sRid, you know 'We'r ncerned that you didn't how up. You'r~ 

requ ired to cooperate with '111 CG investiga tion. If you lon't do that, you cou Id face 
. nnct ions incl11ding, you kn ' , I rmination,' or something like that." 

h 
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Wben ft'' returned h 1he C HS office an r hi· interview, Williams, 
were the re . Wil lia ms and l'!!n 11 ·ked why he was gone fo r so l ng and began 
telling them about ·ornc 11f th que.·ti ns Lhe agenfs had ;1 ked him. Approx imate ly fivi:; Lo 

ten 111 1' 11u 1 ·es a rt er - r·' t urneu ·' to 1 lJS · rfi 
I'"''

o ·ice, 

, 
tI - 11 er arn· vet 

ft'P 
1 :.if or-1, s w i· t 11 1"@1"9 s 

was speaking lo Williams and he bear I H II r c<1 I! L him from down the 
hn ll. [-reJJer to ld ft'' !hat she needed Lo speak to him, ancl llll responded l!w t 

ft'' 
he lid 

not wi h Lo speak (o her~ ilhoul his allorney. [foJl<.;r persisted lei ling lhat he needed 
to speak to him, and - told her a ain that sh · needed to contact hi s aUorney. Dur ing 
this ex lrnnge, Wi ll iams ·toocl up and told Heller t pul her request in writing. TT lier 
ignored Will iams ;:111d told - again th at she needed to speii k wi lh him. She then lo lu 
ft'! U1at he cou ld not Lei! olh rs about their interv iew. - asked Heller i f he could 
talk to his fam ily about it, 1md she said th<1t he co11 lcl not spea / to <i nyone nbout it. 

l"!!m.rd-

t that point, Williams told Heller t!l'tt she ncet!ed to put her req uest in writin g, llrntft'' 
already lo!d h r he had ai attorn y, and that she sh uld nol be lhere. Heller exten ed h r 
hand to shake WiJ!i mns' hand, and she stated, "Mr. Williams, l ~ Ji sabe!h Dr::ike, nice to 111eet 

you "and Wi Ii i ams said something to the effect of, "l d n't want to' lrnow you[.1" ft'! 
testified "He was c rtai nly using an a sertivc tone" flS he lo ld f fe ller to ''put it in writing" 
and to leave the OFI , office. H owever, Will iams was n 1 screaming or shouting. -
testifie<l, "I wm1ld I iken it to wlrnt you wou l I do lo you r kids . . . Not screaming, but 
c _rf"a i_nl_Y ' T me~n bus i~es~, do ~hat ['m tell ing you to d?. '" - descr!bed the volun e 
of \ J!liams vOJce as ·a li ttle brt louder" tban conv rsatrn naC - tes ti fied th at 
Wi lliam did not scream cu rse or use threate11i 11g words. Wil liams wns not sweating his 
veins were 
ft'! 

not bul ging, and - di not observe spitt le coming from WilliHms' mou th . 
tes tified tlrn - Williams "may be five-two on ·1 good day. You know, Drnke (Heller) 

is five-eightlfi e-n ine and in shoes, pr bably a liltle bit tn ller than Umt. So he certl'l inly was 
not ri ght up ag(J inst her looking up. Y u know lie was a good Lwo to three feet away at a l! 
times mid sometime· furth ' r." - slated that he recnl!cd Wil liams "gesturing" bul h 
di I not recall W ill'Bms po int ing at Heller. Will iams "war defi1 itely no t jab ing hi.:r in the 
cht:st. .. Ii e 1 said, h wasn "t clos enough to do lhfll. - stuted that the cl scst He ller 
anrl.Williams ·a 111 e lo each other wa ·when H lier stuck out her hand to shat e Will iams' 
band and she moved toward William 

T'?JtJ testified,' I've been a (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
a - f'o r. y >:irs alnios. You J now, he 

never cursed at her. [-:Te never was within two feet of her lhe whole t ime. f-l c never 
threatened her. He never snid, you know, get out f my office or I'm going to kick your 
ass . Yo u know, he Jl ever sn id <J nyth ing lher limn pL1 t it in writi11g, you know, bas ica lly you 
shoutdn t be here. [-Ic may have said leav the offic • so111ethi11 0 lo that effect, and you 
know, at tlrn t poin t, I wos done wilh them. ll1ey were in ;.111oth cr -- you know, they were 
st i 11 going roun and round about putting it in wriling, g1:;t out of here, \ hatever. [ just 
simply said, "Hey, [' 111 oul f here." - went to his offict:, retr ieved bis gym bag a11c.! 

ft'' 
left the OH, suite. A!i he ler1 Wi ll iams and H lier wcr stil! "g ing back and forth,' but 

noled that their in teraction coul I not lwve lasted more Llrn n Dnother I 0- 15 seconds 

ft'! 
because it did not take him long [ ·etrievc his g m bag and walk lo the elevalor, and whi 

w<1s waiti ng fo r lhe elevator, Heller andl"!!P e, itecl HS. As fh ey wnlkecl past 
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ft' pnl\'id ·d ,\ sk ·ch of' th HS spaci..: and h lu ali n of !hu · wlu ·re 
1111 

prcs,nt Ii r 
lhc inl ·rn 1 ion tween lhe fG ~md OH pc nncl Exhi i I . note<l lh t the 
m ·id •nt thnl 11rcd in HS would 11 thave happi.;ncd ifllt!ll r Imel not ·011tacl d him 
\ ilhout hi di 111 y I r-s nt, knowing thallal \•as rcpr s nl J by un I. 

n < 

· n1 ·rn 11l i11 n11 email 
E.·hibit 3 . 
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15. n overnber24,20 14, (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) am1 (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) interview·dCtcvcn 
Wi lliams (Exh ibit 34). Williams re a /led lh:it on October 2tl, 20 I . - began his 
interview with lhe or J Hge11!s ilt 11ppruximalcly 2:00PM. Williams - and ­
were in the OHS offic pticealapproxi1rn1t ly :15PMwhell llll returned. Williams 
described - as "vi ·ibly di lra11ghl . \.Villiams slated lhatft!' lescribecl being held in 
an. ffi e b the a enls frn four homs, with lhe agents tell ing him !hat he lrnd lo disclose . 

on various issues iu which · [-f 1111 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) (b) (7)(>\.) Williams described this flS "semi-custodial inleffogation" whit;J1 

Wi I J iams described as n lern 1 used by the 0 [ 1 agents when they questioned El' employees, 
sometimes for long periods or Lime, who had ma I ware on their con 1putcrs. Williams 
idenlified this problem ns having eKiste<l within : p for his entire tenure. Williams 
expressed his concern that, in ft'" ase, 1he OIG wa · ontinuing its prnclicc of keeping 
employees in tin interview "where, whi le the employee was lik Ly free to !eave, lh fG agents 
made it clear lhat if hey did leave, there wou ld be difficulties for the employee ... " Of 
further concern to Will iams was the Lypes of questions hat tbe OT agent asked of- , 
which WiJJiams believes were outsid of his understand ing oCthc scope of he interview. 
Williams thought the scope of the intt:rview was limited l an administrati ve rev iew of 
1"!'P duties '!!""''"' He based this b lief cm aserie of emai ls between I imsc!fa nd 
SA Heller lhat ccurred over lhe preceding monlh. On October 24. 20 I J Williams "did not 
hav good onfidence that the process (fo r th int rview) had been reviewed, or that my 
subordi1 ate for purpos s of asting as his learn leader, wn being lflken care of by 
management." 

With regard lo specific information sought by 1he OIG agents lhat Wil liams believed 
exceeded the scope of the agreed upon interview, Williams s1ated ll i'ltlal was hesitant to 
share deta ils of the in terv iew beca11se he had been warned by lite ag nts nol lo discuss the 
interview with an one, but Williams understood Lhnt !he OIG agen1s w re attempting to el icit 

ases !hat OH was w rking (b) (7)( >\.) (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

told Williim1s Lhal lhe agents advised ';be 
would be with !hem 12 hours the next day, an I 12 hours th · fol lowing thy unti l he gave · 
(hem everything they wirntecl. s \ i!liarns, were discussing these 
concerns two iudi idual s unknown to Williams enlered the OHS space. 

ft!! immediately idenlitie<l SA Heller, telling Willirnns a11d l'!!T lhey rnusl have 
followed him from the OlG offic where the inter iew occurred. Heller was calling for 
l'!!P and Im began walking toward her. Williams amll'!!n fo llowed I'll" · s 
ht.: approached - a11 l H Iler Will ia ms observed a sewnd, mal e, u11 known individual 
standing next to her. \ illiams lteard 1111 say words to lhe cffe to " ('m not going l 
clisc11ss anything with you wilhoul my attorney." Heller cl llrnt l'!!"step outs ide 
the ffice with her. IF'" 

requesl 
responded thal she could say whatever needed to be ·aid in the 

presence om!!" Williams, LlllJ l'"I'· As H lier continued to i11si st lhat ­
acco111pany her outside the offict}, Williams si pped up and told Heller "He does not wish to 
spenk to y011 outs ide of the presence of h i.s nttorney." /\s r-f I !er continued to refer to -
as \ ii Iiams admonished l-Ie!lcr "1t i~ Show some respect. " At 
about thi point dmu1g thi interaction, Im departed out of\ ill.iams' sight. illiams 
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1ccalls rcpe:1ting rhc same --lnlemems sc•:;;rnf tim~. 1ha1 (b)(6)  (b)
(7)(C)- tficl not \\ ish lo speak wilh 


I lcllcr wilhout his :11lorni.:y present, and that Heller should put her di1'Cctivcs i11 writing. 


I feller then in11od1rcc:d he~elf lo Williams, and nskccl him \\ho he wa~. ex1c11di11g her hand to 
shake his. Williams stepped back. not \\anting to mnkc any phy it-111 conl:wl with her. 
Wi ll i,1111-; di.: nibcd this point a'i the clos~sl he pol to l lcllcr, :1ss1..Tli11g 1h111 In: maintnined a 
1hrcc foot distance lidween himselfand Heller. 

Williams described 1 lcllcr as "approxinuitely riv~ ten, f ' 111 g11~:;sing. Shu was wcming heals. 
She; WIJ.'l vcry,lall, by my perception, lhal evening." rle rdnlcd his tll)l'lllHI habi t or 
mni111ai11i11g 1mmc diswnc(;) between himself and lhm;c with wholll he is i11lcrnc.li11g. He does 
this so lhal his rclfll ivc ly short stature is not so prominent. Frnm 11 n.:H'i(>llnblc distance, he 
c1111 look :mother person in lhe eye without h:iving lo " look up" lo thnt person. fn this case, 
he cs1 1111;1l<'d th:if he .stood approximately four feet from I lcller, :ind may have mowd in as 
close ns tlm::c fcl't :11 some point. 

As l lclle1 continued stating that (b)(6)  (b)
(7)(C)- nl!eded to occompnny her, Willi.11ns told her to speak 

with her manugcr. He then directed her lo lea\c the office. /\ Ocr directing her lo lca,·e 
several times. 1lcllcr nnd the other male. later idcntific:d ns -(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) . llepnrtcd. Williams 
had no specific 1ccollcction ofHelle1_.s demeanor when she departed, other than that she 
seemed "very dismissiv~ of the entire e\ cnt:· 

Wil li:tlllS dcst.:ribcd -(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) demeanor during rhis c11ti1c CJ>isocli.; w. "rein, cd'", becoming 
more re laxed .111d " less imposingr- as the cl iscu~sion between I lclkr onu \Vill imns progressed_ 

Willi:u11s ndmowlcclged that he has both watched I rclll!r's tc~ti111m1y before congress nnd has 
rcucl lit<' lr:111scripl or her testimony_ With regard lo 1 lcllcr's contcnlicm lh:tl she stepped 
bc1t.;l<w:ircls lrom Wi llimns, nncl lhat Williams stepped forward lo close the dist:rnce, V/iiliams 
stn l<.:d tliul ltcr tc:s1i111ony is i11a1;curate, stating "T did 1101 npprnrwh lw.r, ( ~; 111 s i11g hor lo step 
buck." Wilh rcgmd to rl cllcr's contention tJial Williams wns poi111ing itl li er, William~ stated 
tlrnl he wns fH' l11nlly poinli11g loward the front door of"tho onirc suite as ltc directed her lo 
lcav1:. \Vi lliums described pointing not with a sinr lc linger, b11l rather with four lingers, 
gc:stu1ing townrd 1he front door. He described his poinli1w as offset from I lcller, who was 
->1n11d i11g in front orhim, IJy approx imately 70 degrees. "illiams dcuic<.J pointing ciircctly at 
I feller. and cleniccl having his hand within inches o[ h 1 body. "I <.l idn 't gel close enough lo 
he within i11chcs ol'hcr body.· With regard Lo the tone and volume of his voice. Williams 
lnl <I "When I am inn position where f \\ould like to emphasize that it is important or 

official, I speak in u voic.; that is precise. f was using n slightly large, louder \'olumc than 
I'm using to ynu now ... f wa.s neYcq-elling al her but J \\ould sny that my voice was slighU} 
lowfor than il is now. huL not at a yell. And it w:is nol designed to intimidnte her in ::my 
111411111c1· It wus mc1 dy designed lo convey lo her that she had ~n1rrc1 I into the office, she 
hat!, in my view, c1 ca1cd difficulties for an ernployct.: ofmin~. ancl lhnt she was outside the 
scopc of wh11l I had known lo he agreed to:· Williams denied feeling ungr; during this 
CllC(lllll lCI', bt1l W<l~ t"OllCCrne d wiLJ1 wbat he perceived as lr11a:-.Sll\Clll frnlll the Q[G agents. 
\Villiants cntcgor icu ll y denied that spiHLe ever came nu( of his 1ncrnth during this interaction. ______ - ·-----------------­
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"l lon' t r ca ll ever havingsp ifllc bulgingv·ins pro fuse weal ing. Thcdcscriptorthatwas 
given before congres~ in leslimony is a visual, essentially of an individual having a stroke. I 
beli eve lhat the agents <.; reateci n vist1al in 1111 effort to Gonvey what they wa nted the 1.1 udieJ1cc 
to hear, lhat ther wa a reason for them lo be <lfraid. f don't beli ve tlwl visual is ai.;curate ." 

Williams noted that neither He ller nor I'!!" ever produced crccienfoils to id ntify 
ihemse!ves . nme tn fhe encountor " incredibly i11appropriately dressed ' in j <11ls :rn I 
a "muscl e T-shirl." never ident ified himseJ[ during the 11lire ·ncountcr. Wi lli ams 
believe thatft!@"R'!t' t:ntire ro le was to intimidate II'" "Anrl a 'oogle or me doesn't 
demqns! rate a 32 year career L0 the governm ent and lhc multiple military tours L served. A 
Google of me today rlemonslrates an indi idua! who has b en tried in th cour of pul lie 
opinion and a Congressiona l commillee as having committed Hn act, 1hat we're only today 
having a·non-bi1:1secl, n 1tral investigati< n to determine the facts around." 

A fter !he <lgents depa rted the rfice snite, William· m1d l't!n returned lo Williams offi ·c 
and began yp ing an enrnil to ~ 1 1\ marngen cnt lo i1 form them of what had happened 
(Exhibit 5). Williams typed the ems il with input from l@I"'. Willi ams r ca lls f"@l"P 
mentioning that she had nev r been subjected to 

anc
lh~l lack of profcssiomll ism in her enti re 

car er. While Wil li ams !""!!'P were typing the enrnil, WiJliums received a calJ from 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) , who wa very upset o r what had occtfrred lo - . B wanted 
assurances from Wil liams th at he would do J1is j ob and protect - Wi!lim11s described 
this as a very difficult telephone call one that made him rea lize (he exi nt to which ­
- wer impacted by the actions of he lG ag nls. 

fn response to questions from hi. attorney, ii Iiams stated that to his knowledge, EPA 
management never comp Jled - to alt ncl the inlerv iew on October 24, 20 13. Williams 
also stilted lhat at no time. · id Heller m· - advise him that his behavior was out al' line 
or th reatening. 

Al_app1:oxima~ely 7: l5P I as W illi~n~::; and - were work ing 0 1.1 !he e~na il > 1~1ey hem:d 
vo ices 111 th e front of the office. Willwms an<i - walked toward the [ran t oJ- th1:; offic~ 
and cncoUJ1tereci fou r indi idual . ill iams rccognizedft!!"'""'' and ~ ' ' , but did 

I'll!'
not recogn

, 
ize the tiler two. Th · agent .who seemed to be in charge, la~er iden!ifiecl as R 

and ' approached Williams and ~reeling Lhem to "step back". 
Williams 

If'!!!' 
Jws no recol! ec:tion of Cirst being apprnachcd!JYlm. As Williams wns <:mgaging 

with he could see another agent, later identified as , Laking n "very 
aggressive approach" with 1'11" l'"P' informed Willinms and that he was 
investififl!i e report of a female agent who w11s assa1dtecl earlier in the even ing. Will ian s 
recalls slating t him " ou sir, assau lted a female agent. I'll!' allempte to 
separnte Wi l Iiams and . During this encoun!er Wi lli C1 ms consistently described . 
Blm and as " laicl bac.~k". 

While address ing Will iams, I'll!' "sta rted te l lin t> me and attributing Lo me a series of 
t;haracterislics or ac iviti s tha t I thought he \.WIS seeking toe tabl ish, that l clidn t feel \Nere 
the case." Williams attributed Lhe fo llowing s!atements to I'll!': "Sir you' re very 



Sir, y u re very~ c. ou 'r cry angry.·· 
Thi 
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Williams beli ·v : !hat !his ·11 ounterwas over by 7:40PM. ll ·r ch, king 11 U1.: welt-being 
ol boll '"'!!''P nnd - , describing both as ry shaken', lie immcclintcly began 

·mail l n tify his managem 1 t f wh. t hnd 1 <..urr <.I (E. hi it 6). 

\ .' i Iii. m. 1ftc111ptcd l c. plain lhe impact of lh ·e ~and ·11c unt ·r 011 hind "'!!''f, 
11'": " 

nnd 
\> \ hen th· came irt at 7: 15 m_ assc sm nl imm lial ·ly \~as th 1 s. problem. 

I hey .111 ·:ime in ... th y ·ere onlroll ing U1 eu ironmeuL J crh· ps they vie '-"d that. s a 
p rfc ·fly nppr r rial law c11u r ·emcnl acti ily. (Tm vcr, lh · fleet on my ffic a huge! 
ti slru Ii . I hey'r lt'}ing to separa c us, they"r gi ing li11· ·ti ns. I h ·y cl n l identify 
lh 1 i.;I . • h y r ·p a ing in a &L)', you kn w. '\ · an :m her• we\ ant w can 
tall to a1 o 1. hot if its 7: l ?' 
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re_po rt attributed statements to him i-!1cit he never made, nnd I hat !he t-cport misstated some of 
his represen t<i ti ons . 

Williams then escorted lhe agents through the CHIS office suite, and walked tlle agents 
through what lrnppened and where i_t happened on October 24, 20 13. Photographs were taken 
to document this visit (ExJ1ibit 37). 

16. On December 3, 20 l4, . I'!!" ancl !M'!!P'"' interviewed Deputy Chief of Staff John 
Reeder, EPA (Exhibit 38). Reeder stated th at 011 the night oflhe al leged assault, I'!!" 
and anotber OIG agent - poss ibly l"!!P' came to Reeder's office and info rmed him that 
Wi lliams had just assaulted an OIG agent. When Reeder asked if Williams had hit or 
lhreatened the agent, the agents responded, "No, but he interfered with an inves ti gation ." 
The agents further inform ed Reeder that interfering with an investiga tio n could be 
considered assault. When Reeder expressed his surprise that it could be considered an 
assault if Williams did not hit or lhreaten lhe agent, they responded, "[T]lrnt's what they' re 
saying back at the office ." geeder was "troub led" because it sounded to him that the OIG 
agents had already formed an op inion that what had happened jn ons was an assault, 
which should be a "lega l question ." The agents informed Reeder that they were going to go 
to OHS to investigate 1he matte r. 

Reeder testified that he J)reviously had concerns a bout lhe "lactics" of the EPA OIG. 
Reeder recal led that in February 20 12, Elk ins informed Reeder that the OIG needed an 
above ground parking space to "respond as part of a Federal law enforcement 1·esponse to 
an incident, whatever tbnt might be." Reeder noted that EPA policy limited .the above 
ground parking spaces to the Admin isti·ator, the Deputy, and the Chief of Staff. 
Neverthe less, Elkins asked Reeder "incessantly" about the parki11g space. At one point, 
Elkins called Reeder on the te lephone and told him; "They' re telling me, back in the office, 
here that you could be found t:o be in terfering with law enforcement, by not nllowing us to 
have this parking spot." Reeder inlerpreled Elkins' sla[ernent as a "ve il.eel threat" that he 
coq ld be foun d to be impeding law enforcement if he did not grant lhe parking space. 
Reeder .stated it \'>'as "pretty clear" that Su llivan was "pushi ng" Elk ins to get the above 
ground parking space. Reeder exp lained that the incident about Lhe parking spClce was an 
example of the "aggressiveness an d intimidation factor that some people have fe lt, from tbe 
[G. I felt it." 

Reeder testified that the employees in OHS folt "harassed" by the OIG, and the OIG 11ever · 

oave Reeder a "straight answer" about what they were investigating when they interviewed 
' 11'"!9 for four hours. Reeder noted lhat normally, lhe OIG provides EPA leadership w itl1 a 

"formal notice" when they are going to be looking at an issue, unless tht: matter is criminal 
in nature. EPA leadership did not receive such a notice pertaining to the investigation of 
OHS. Reeder also noted that the OIG Jrns not prov ided their rationa le for obtaining the 
emails .of OHS employees du ri ng their investigation. 



Subs lll nt' hi in! ·rvic.:w, Reeder prov id..: In 111 ·111 mmclum wilh ·xhil its Lo (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

I ' l11ili11g c n ·ern nboul the l~l) OIG und nd lili 1rnl i11ro1111u1i n aboul lll 'V nl of 
C ct b ·r 24, 2013 lixhibil 40). 
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(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

·----r 



Su llivan bcli v' 'that folio\, ing Hell r's interview orF'r h nsl (; I her if- signed 
H ND • a11d -fa ll er I' sponded that they Imel forgull n to hav!mrr ·ig11 orrr;. Within 
approxima ely live minutes of the conclusion of the inl •rvicw If ·lier nn 1 I'!!" we'nt lo 

H t have - sign lhe N A. · 

Wh n H II rand l'!!P returned from OHS,, ullivun" oukl tell soincthing liad 
frn1 pene l. " lcllcr wa "very upset;" her face was r ci, rnal, 'ullivrin cou l I henr le11. ion in 
h r oice. he Ii nol have tear i.n her eyes. - "had, ' l'Y conc.:ern cl lo I on his 
foe :·, nd his cl mean r suggested that - "knew that Ibis' 
l'!!n 

J' c:1 big dt:al. " Heller a11d 
inform d ul !i an that there lrn<l been 

I"!!" 
H onfronlalio11 with Willia111s. t that 

p inl uJJivan gathered--, and and llcll rand I"!!' briefed them 
on v.ihat ha happen d. - m: y have also b en present. flcllcr 

l'!!T 
inC rmcd 

wh n sh nd arrived at OHS, - was telJin 1 \ illi m and I'"'" 
Lhcm thal 

aboul lhe 
int rview. r ell r then told - tha she needed to ·1 cak to ltim und hn e him sign a 
N A bu ft'' did not\ ish l sign the ND . ..'ullivan t st ificd " nd that I I to r. 
\ illiams 'om ing ut and screaming at her to get ul of th office. n I hen, sh· described 
Mr. \Villinm er lly threutening and physically g sturing in <Iv ry -- lhu wny she 
des ribcd it me he aim sl made physi aJ c.:ontact \ ith her brca ls by pointing al her. Aud 
h \! as pill ing nt the mouth ... v ins bur Ling being vc1 very nrgumenlnli e and 
c nfr ntational, and scr 11m ing very loudly at her. " 

iSIFICA1lON: WARNlllG 
ont is tho property of 1110 Dopart.m~nt of Oofcns 

you r agency. 
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(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) ut 

I :ise 011 Heller . descripli n of what h;id occurred, u Iii van "was:u 'l quit sur · if it met the 
definition f nn a. aull ', defined in U .. Code but he believ d it "m ·!the definition of 
int rferi110' with a fodera l agent in the cours of his luti ·s." Ho c er, Fl 'subsequently 
inf 1111ed ... ulli an that t jfliams nducl met their definition of nn ssault mdcr ihe DC 

ode. 
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(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) . and .(b)(6), (b)
(7)(C). re1umed lie n OHS, lhcy i11fo1mccl Sullivan that 

(b)(6) (b)(7)
(C) h td .1lrcacly ldl lhc office. Williams wns ''slill vc..1,. UJ>S\!I, \c1y anim.11ed. still 

scrca111i11g. still ucting vc1y unprofessional." 
 (b)(6), (b)(7)

(C) w.1s p1i!scnt, :md ~he told the agents 
~he was loo upscL 10 speak. Another employee whose name Sulli\ n could nnl recall 
(\\hom lhc 1cp01li11g :igcnl knows to be-

(
b

 

(b)(6), (b)
(7)(C)

-

-
w.1s also p1cscnt \\. hilc the agent-; 

atlc111p11· I lo interview "th(; oth~r ~mployee· · Willinms intc1 lei l!d with their 
intl:rvicw <:>111Jh. a11 lcstilicd, "(Williams) didn't push anybody 01 )'HI know, .ts far as ( was 
lold, lw clid11'1 physic:illy inCerfere. flejust vc1bnlly i11tcllc1(.:d with Idling lhu agents lo 
~lop n11CI !dli11g lhc young man. "Don't talk lo thcsi.; pcopl\;. You don'l lm\.c to trilk to 
them." Sinrc !lw agents dclcnnincd "nothing was goiug le> bt• at·1·0111plisl1ed that night, 
because Mr. Williuins wns going to intel'fcn; wilh evcrylhing we wen; trying lO do," lhe 
npcnl'l kn 0 1 rs n11d rc;11111cd ~o the OIG ?r!icc. ~11 ~/iv;m lcstiliccl lhnl 11 011Cof th~ 
who rci;pn11dcd to Ol IS lolcl him lhey believed W11!1t1ms nssnultcd fhcrn When ­(b)(6), (b)(7)(C)

(b)(6), (b)(7)(C) ' .md.(b)(6), (b)
(7)(C). returned from OITS, Sullivnn inslrnl·tcd thc111 to prepare written 

statc11wnts :1bnut whal had occurred. 

Sulliv;rn r1·cal/cd tlrn-(b)(6), (b)
(7)(C) was "very upset" he.cause he thought lhr.y ~hould take more 

action 1cgnrding \\'illiums. Sullivan recalled (b)(6), (b)
(7)(C).. thou~ht they hould have co1 Linue<l lhe 

intc1vicw of (b)(6), (b)(7)
(C)- 5ulli\an did not recall hearing Lhat~(b)(6), (b)

(7)(C) duccd his handcuffs as jf 
to effect :111 mre.sl. \ul/i\ an had n general rccollcc1ion l~(b)(6), (b)

(7)(C) lhought !hey .should have 
nn es teeI William$, md Sullivan made the definitive~ ~tatcmcnl, "\Ve'1c not :.irrcsting 
:111; hody tonii ht." Sullivan described (b)(6), (b)

(7)(C)..as '·upset and fi ustralcd, because of the way 
Ifeller had been l1c.1lcd, and the v.ay he had bec11 trcI1leti, hy going hnck to try lo do that 

wit11c:-;s i11tc1 vrcw, a11d hcing interfored v.ith." 

·1 he folk>wing tiny, Sullivan made lhc decision lo c<1ll l•PS lo inwsti~·atl! 1ll-llcr's 
allcgatio11s ag11i11st \Vil Iiams jointly wilh the oro. Ik: invnlvcd 1•(>8 i11 the ('USl' because 
they W1.:1'l; ii llClllrCll p:irly. Jniliafly, lhc 0 [0 nss ignc;d illl ug<;Jtl (O lhc invcstiguliOll, bul a( 
lht; req11c:st ol't lw IWA admi nistrator, !he OIG cvenluu lly willtdrow n·<l 111 llw i11vesligalion 
compl<'((; ly. 

S111l1van c:-<p luinc.:d thnl OJCJ agents typically use NDJ\s when they have otl1cr i11lerviews lo 
conducl a11d they do 1101 want !he interviewee tu tell others whnt tlw llllC tionli Wl.rc asked. 
Iht: l'.1s c ng1.:1ll or histhc1 supervisor generally decides whether lo use :i ND,\ for n 

particul:lr intcrvie\\. ~ulll\ an did not recall v .. hether he was awnri: (b)(6) (b)(7)
(C)- woul<l be given a 

NOJ\ p1 ior to his int:r>v icw. but h~ assumed l!llC would have lwen gi\'cn. I le indic..ited the 
use ofN()J\-: was routine for the OIG. 

Sullivan staled nil Of<I ngenls have the autho1ity to issue a Kalkincs warning and compel an 
cmploytc lo h: irt1c1 viewed. Cf the employee rduses tu be int<'rvicwcd, the OJG "cannot 
slrnp tht: c111ploycc in the chair:· Rather, the ngcntc; would pre er t the mnltcr ln lhc agency 
lo di scipline the employee. The Of G does not bnvc the oulhorily lo impose discipline on 
i:. t> A employees. 

S11 1l1 va11 noteel thnl prior to rhc events ofOctober 24, 2013, then; had been "longstanding" 

http:be---w.1s
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prob lems betwee11 th e OIO and Ol-JS. He lated that Willim1;s bt;Jicvcr. lhe Of ' hns no 
·11risd ict iu1 r gard ing m1tio11al security molters. For example, Wil!inms once told. ullivan 
"You haven authority t er the SCIF or ov r classified information. If lhere's u problem, 
Im Galling lhe FBI, I'm not ca lling yo11." ('ullivm1 b lieved Will irnn. was incorr ct Hbout 
the OIG's ·m1thority, but Williams' bosses did not c.:orreut. hi111. 

l 8. n January 2015, for the purpose cf issuing a I<alkines warning lo fl!@!!!''• 
!W"!!""'' presented this matler to ssistanl nited Inks Attorney (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

istr ict of 'olu111bia . ft'' decl ined prose ution oI!"!'' (Exhibit '12) . 

19. n February _!O, 20 15, - anct !t!!tt!!'""inlerviewed f"'!!!''(Exhil it 43). 
!"'!!!'"'' al!orney- parti i1 , led in !he in terview via spe<1kerphon . I rior to 
the interview, f"'!!!''wa given a~ all ine · warning based on his previous requ ·st to be 
0111pelled (Exhibit 44). I'll!' provided a copy 'of't wrillcn state1m:nl he prepared 

(bx.hibit 45). ij'!@!!!'' statccl llrnt he was [feller's '!!"!!"' when she was conducting the 
investigation involving H '. However, he was minimally invol ed in !hat investigalion 
because he had a related y t tangential inve ligalion, so Heller was Inking dfrecti n Ii· m 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) and Sullivan. l'!!!'and "everybotly" in the or was flWare Heller was 

0 oing to interviewft'' on Oct·ober 24, 2013 f!!@!!!'P was aware ihc scope ofl-TelJer's 
investigation included whether OHS had lhc uuthority t have law en Li rccment personnel 
conduct]ng investigations. 01$1!'' was aware there\ ere difficulties between lh lG and 
ft'f "getling on the same pnge' to do the interview. He was als , Wi'lrc lhat the IG 
a,Jen ts were not able to Jinish all of their quest ions before the interview was finish ed, rnul it 
was !"'!!!'"'' understandinnr· g that the intervi ew was never completed. I'll!' did n L 
recall interacting with his attorney and the olh r [ manag rs at the end or lhe 
interview. 

I'll!' testified that tlie 1 1 rout in ely uses ND As lo "protect the idcn!i ly of lhe 
individual" an to "keep !ht: Sf!nctity of rhe investigation." I'll!' was informer! that 
' legal" had approved of the l 's authority lo 11se D s :md the us r ND As W<lS 

' erfunctory.' 

1"'11 teslifi cl that he Sullivan, - aml !m were present whe11 It ·ller 
and !' retu rned from H . - th ought H · li er iisetl Lbe term "nssaul t lo 
rl escribe what had happened, blll he wns not certa in that Hcllc;:r wa;; rhc:: first person l 11se 

tlrnt erm inology because "that word wa~ used in the entire dialogue of people talk ing.'' 
'u llivan dire led I'll!' and others tog to HS lo gel witness st.atemenls about what lmd 

happ ned becaus what had liappened was' way out of th norm." l lhat point, I'll!' 



' voic , i l!iam 
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had 11 H ,. 1111 • I an pinion or \\lhctl1er I feller Imel in f: ·t b. 11 a ·.w1ll•!d. I aLh T, he took 
It ·r I. in th:it h • had en assnuhcd- and Ii• inl ·n I uh g:ilh ·1 fol'l. u :s ·c if <lll assa 1lt had 

ll:i. ·cl on ullivm1 s dir lion, (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

as 

- stutc I,' I her j11sl seemed lob a disc um: t wh thcr we're 1111 enr r 111 1 t o r 
nnl, 11

11 • Willi:im inf rmcd the l / agen ts that hew g in• to 11la ·t tli l·llf. " t the 
·11d or I Im lay SJ\ 11 11 r vms trying to just gu issu fl no11d isdosur,, w'1 i ·h i:-; n form that -­
it :'l lh t: -M ym1 loH w, il 's ou r .~ta nclnrd G mi Lha! w d . They ol viou ·I p1;rucivc il <is 

s 111 ·l hing' ii lly llJri-r ·nL" 

---------------



ll't'"e decided lo 'de-esc<1lnl "Lhe situ::ition :m ! he ::md !he otlwr ngeuts I ll H '. 
llowcvcr I'll'' recalled IJ1at after tJ1e ' I ·fl( I l. · Im expressed !lid he b Ii ve I they 
01rld have ri1Testud Williams for interfering wilh. lhem. - nul · that inl t.) rference is 

"n sliding s :.ilc." I'll'' testified, "IH] \ a:m' ;.1b idi11g by' lrnt w were sayi11g. ut loL 
fti1 PS people rl n't abirle exactly by wlial we :my, '<1 il bcco111es 11l)W n -- am re oCa 

Lhre bold and a level. .. if it had gone bey ml lhal I would have (:1ncsle I Williams)." 
H'"!!'•stal d, "1 ul r tri ed Lo factor in al I r he circ11111sl:111ces <llH I b · s ·nsit i ve Lo ven the 
fuel lhat -- where lhey'r' ·urn ing from. There's ubvi usly a bio discunnccl. And l could 
ell that they were yon kn ow, I robably not even c g11izaul, lo some degre ·.of how u1 set 
lhcy wt·.rc, over, lo u l111L ns ver pcrfun ·tory; Lo lhcm a lot - a lul m re tr uble." 
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20. intcrvie\ cd ( ~ xhibil 47). 
from the law Gnn flJli 

(b) (6) (b)(7)(C) 

fi r ihc (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

(b) (6) (b)(7)(C) 

(b)(6) (b) (7)(C) 

(b) (6) (b) (7)(C) 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

n · ·list includes assignment as n 

he ay aft r Lhe incident in 
rotective erv ice nnci the Ol 

Wi lliams began discussing lhc nct:d tc make repents lo the 
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h e nlually 
handshake. He 

Wit h r gn r I to h •r obsorvat io11 s orthe pr x imily betwcc11 I !c.: 11 •r M'l l Wil li ams f"'!!''' 
stated 1 hnt at Iii' b gi1111i11g of the encounter, they w 'I"~ within wha h;cri ed ~s a 

·on fonnbl onvers<lli nal distunce' ofapprox.imnlely three feel. 
Wi 11 i 111s , nd 11 •I !er g t nny closer to cacl ther than that. , ho re all 'ti 
I ' i11 ·h s behind H II · r. l'!!n slate I definitiv ly that. h' 11 r ·, w TI 
\ illi llW g ·t \ ilhin a fl l of each Lher. 

13· · ·d n h r illiams o rs v ml y ·ars f"@l"P described 
nc ml r "as he l picaJly i , I ould say, inc nl.rol r this ilu, lion. He is a 

na al 1 ·: •rv · ric r. \ hen all d for he spenks in , n uth rit tivc lone. I le I finitely u ed 
· 111 au th rit. ti • l ne ... I le did not ell. Tfe did n ts ·1 am ... I n y cal g ri .ally Chat he 
<lid 11 t y II. 11 id not scream. He poke in a slightly cnhnn ·<l n "r. oli mil t ne. very 
1n 1ly r h r. 1\nd he pr bably e calated or incr as d hi volume slightly n. he told her r-

think n c nd 1111 I thir I lime. please lea e ih s a· ·.'M'!!n •s1iinnled llm n scale 
t r I I I , \ illi::11n ' norm I sp •ech olume i al a 6. n lhe cncounl 1· with 1 lcller and 
f"'!!m . It · • l Jl ·d his v Ju me wt1s probably b t c ·n a 7 rind 8. 1"'"!8 · u Id no r ca 11 
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any hand moli n ·by Will inm · during this encounter, and dcni cl sei:;ing Williams poin Hl 
Heller. 

ft!@"''f statecl llrn.t one oft hr. first lhings she noli ·ccJ when Heller came in lo he orti c wus 
tlrnl she had on very high hee led bli1clc boors. She reca lls lhi11king lo hersclf"'Oh my god . 

1"'11'1!' 
I' I be like a gfr111 t in lhose." 'he described I feller without !he bools as ::ipprox imatc1y 

height, fivt:: fee t ·even inches, anti with rhe boots, estimated her lieight as five fe 
-nin e inclies to five feet t ' ll i11dies. he e, ti111aled William heigh at five [eel one inch to 

five feet Lwo inches . hen :iskcd h w it\ 01 dd have looked if Williams sloo tj t1st inches 
away from [-leJ I r, she stated "1 know Stev · so wc l I and how he practices ru lcs or el iquetle 
and ... and demeanor i,: ith . .. with wom n. H wou ld ne r stand that close to t.1 woman. He 
told me, yon lrnow, a little bit ·1bout his military bm:kgro uml. He has certHinly commanded 
women . He's served with \ omen. He would just never do anything that was inappropriate 
phys ical. . . in physicBI proximi ty lo n woman." 

Duri,ng the exchange between Hellt:r and did n t obs rve any mov ·ment 
byl'!!n Lo indicate that he perceived a threa t. I'll" did not know who he was al the 
lime and finding him lo be physicaJl)M£i!S 1g, she \ a5" aulious about him and paid 
attent ion Lo him and his 111ove111e11ts. also did not observe any actions by Heller 
suggesting thatH lier fe ll threatened. 

Wh en asked if she saw any misconduct on the parlor any I r agent, Will iams, or ­
during 1his first encoun ter, l'!!n staled Llwt she did. . :. becm1se SA Drake (Heller) 
let"' 

fi nd 
came back in t HS SJ ace, nnd aUcmpled L speak to - without his 

at orne , after the intervi ew about an interview where he had been repr sented, and .. . and 
was c lea rly trying to, you know di reel him lo do someth ing outside the presence of hi ' 
attorney, f thought that was im1ppropriate, and that if' r hacl seen lhnl, in a different 
circumstance, I would prnbably lrnve r ported thnl as.. .as, you know, poss ibly being n, yo u 
know a breach or investig·Hiv · protoc I. " I'll" clar ifi ·d !hat nce l'!l"i11dicated that 
he did nol wish to spea l with Lhe ag nts without his nttorne:y presunt, the agents shoul ! llave 
co111111u 11i c<Jted wi1h the <ittorney. I'll" <ilso suggested that at th e point when -
state he di I not wish lo speak with the agtmls the iJgent s nuthori!y o be in the space 
"evaporated. ' She clcn ie ·1 observing Williams cnga e in m1yLh i11 g I hat co11 stit11tecl 
"cond 1cting unbe oming" or "er a ting a dist111 ancc". 

f!lf!!W n ver saw Hell r produce any document for llm to sign desp ite Willii:!ms ' 
admo nishment to " pllt it in writing. ' 

Once Heller and deparl d, Williams cr.ime b ck to his office and Llm discussion 
returned to concerns that - had bee11 compt:l led lo disc lose class ified infornwtion. 
f!!@!!"describe \ illiams' demeanor at lhi time a· a "hcight~netl stale of al r 11ess." he 
s tated Lhai when they were in the office together, they were sitting wilhi n a cotip le of fec:: t or 
eacb other. f!lf!!W saw "absolutely no trace or facin l redness or. .. or perspi ration, or 
v.1einess on his face all. ' She also d nied c r seeing sp ilfle coming out of Williams ' 
inouth. l'!!n 

<ll 

and Willi ai~h draftecl an emai l together t repo t .vhat bad ha1 p ned to Juan 

I'll" 
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11"' 
' 

t y · • ·. o i 11c.: cl111i11i lralm- of I-L. While frnlii11 1hi, ·muil, \111/imm; look a phone 
~. m!!l!•could tell fr n \'di am • id flhc · nv •rsatj n lhai 
~ o er whru. had ap em: Im-. he d cril ·d \I ii Iiams as 
hyi1 c I 1 r ·as ur lhal hew ult.I tak ·ar · the itu tli1111. ,\t !he conclusion of 
1hat ·ill, th 111t1il a· :cnl andlet'T1 onlimr d talking\ ith illi 1111: ::ib ut external 
11 Ii tcnlions th ·y thought they should make. 

c uld still hcar ­
ou Im w. you can 

n . Yl 11 c;in I 'L rminated. We can terminate )Oil fr 111 y Ill' federa l employme11t." 
·1 v him • t the d or i lh conference 
\ hil n t r' ·all in , his exact words 

1ryi11g lt "in r · ne anJ d fend" 
t I . '0011 I her allt.:r , II four agents 

f"'!!W I :cril ·d Lhi n unler as "one of the trials f my . ar I' ..• I lefinitely fi lt 
Urn! r WEIS I t: i11 on fin ·d .. . I believed that [ pos ibly, if lhc iluuti< ll .sen lat d. f believe there 
c 11ld lmv f ,en vi 1 1H.:e. l knew all fou r of Ches m n w• r nrm ... fi rn li tr l bil f time, 
(l) r~ar' I for my s;i ety.~· t"'!!Welaborat d Ll1fl ' [t \Nl1'' ·ombinalion f Ille way Lhey 
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entered the room; the r semblance lo wh111 l would consider to be a drug raid, r some re~il ly 
yo 1 know, patently obvio11. illegal activity· he fact there were fr)llr of lhc111; the fo t lhat 
they wer- armed ... t be lieve !hey were urmc:d ... lhe fact Uu1t they were shouli11 ·11Jd try ing to 
separa te us; and also, Lhc physica l proximity of'. .. oftheir bo lie . .:; to ours." 
IP"B'"Twas asked wh 'lher, in her opi11io11, fh agent's desire ln inlcrview ll"'"'in Octa i;r 
2 20 13 was within lh ir nulbority lo compel'. H!W"!Pstale I her belief that th ag nls did 
not ha ·management ·1ulhority to compel the interview. She 'I.Med that the nulhority to 
compel an interview "st ms from management Lhrough tl~e [ 1 agent, to the employee." 

During this second encounter with the four LG agents, rrnr:mdcnied observing anything 
on Lile part of Wi lli ams that rose to im1ppropriatc behavior r misconduct. When asked 
whether she observed •rnylh ing 011 the part ar""!!!RP hal amounted to inappropriate 
beha ior or misconductl"'"''?stalcd •Ye:. I think Lhal. .. I think r was u1 lawfully 
cletai n d. I tJ1 ink J was u11 law [u lly questioned. I think f... tl1ey re<lted a ... a w rkplace 
envir nmen,t, where l ha I r-ar [or my well being, my physi nl well being. [t wa!:l wry .. . it 
was fleet ing and r lhin l [I al keel them oul of il. But there W<IS a veri·rrfr!W lime period 
when L was frightened and T don tfrighten easi ly." With regard Lo interaction with 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) staled" ... L can on ly imagine what it would have fol~ like to b- having 
somone ... an agent screaming at you that unless you go into n onfercnce room wilh tbe 
agent and let him start questioning you t11at you' ll be firecl ... l fell that what he was saying 
to - was false, am! that he ... ancl that he was impinging 011 his righls as well." 
~d-as "clearly the most out of contro l of the fotirofthcm ... !he thought 
crossed my mind that he might pul l hi s weapon on ... ontlf"!!' " 

After the agents left 
(b)(6) (b)(7) (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

c 

who the ' shou ld notify. mr::rr\ and illi1m1s nil discu - I what hadj11sf· ccurrcd and 
role an email lhatnighl Sllll1111'lrizing what ccurred and 

sent it to the General Jo1 111 se l, Deputy General Counsel, and other managers in the rfice of 
Genera l ounse l. She bel ieves that she got responses from/\ vi ··_.arbo and Brendn Mallory 
exprcs:;ing concern over what had occurn::d. She recall s meeting with Garbn the next day to 
report f rrther on what had occurred. 

!""!!Z"stated tlrnt she su sequently became aware that ag ~nt in the EPA Ol<J aUempted t 
bring a criminal chrirge nf' assault against Wilfo1111s. She slated "T would like tu say, under 
oath, tlli.lt there is no possib le way t·hat SA I rnke (Hel ler), or a rc8sonnblc agent in her 
position, cou ld have interpr 'ted wh<it went 011 in my presence I hat night as a11 ~1 ssci ult, 

criminal, civi l, or otherwise, ·1bsent professional incompetenc or psychosis}' · 

\ hen ask d hether she bserved, at any lime n October 24, 2013, a i-etilsal L testify or 
coopera e in an official proceeding on the part of Will iams H'fl'!1!!':!ated "No". She also 
denied observing anything llrnt uay leading h · r lo believe lhal Wi llirnns refused to ornply 
with a proper orded""!!!t!S'denied ob:>erving anyl hing <IL ;1ny li111c llrnl lcd Im· lo bi.::Jievc 
that - refused to c:o111ply with a proper or lcr. 

21. On pri l I 2015 and J ril 20, 2015, (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) provided vi.a email copies orthe 
undated notification letters that the EPA 01 .sent to the FBI (Exhibits 48 and 49). 1 he fir~t 
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"letter ide11 lilied 01 IS ns ~ect oflhc OIG's in vi.;s tigalion; the second lctlc.: r idenlified 
WiIJiams. (b)(6), (b)(7)(C)- and ­ (b) (6), (b) 

(7)(C) as subjects.

22. 011 fVlay 15, 20 15, /\ssistnnl U11itetl States 1\llurncy (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) , Dislrict of Columbia, 
dee I ined prosecution of this nrn!ler, i n~lutling I [cllcr's allegation that Wi lliams assaulted her 
( 18 lJ.S.C. § l 1 I) or lhc allegation raised by 0 10 pcrsonucl that he con1111illed "Obstruction 

-of Justice" by interfering with (b)(6), (b)(7)
(C) interview (Exhibit 50). 
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ANAL' I A ND coNc !JS o~ 

This i11v stigatio11 found Lh at in Lile spring 0[2013, th e 121 /\ 10 began inves lign ling 1111 

BPA em pl yee I"''" r r Allegalions of .mployee 111iscond1 1 1. - pnssi hly pe rU1i11i11 g lo 
(b) (6) (b) (7)(C) (b) (7) 

>\. . fn June 20 I ir came to tile f i' 8 Llltenrion lhat (b) (6) (b) (7)(C) (b) (7)(>\.) 

(b) (7)(>\.) (b)(6) (b) (7)(C) 

The rn r had :1 
HS, and I hey were ci lready workin g ''•"!!!! so th · 

FBI declin e l !he OIG 's orrer lo WOJ!c together. The f<BI fmth er in fo rmed the 01 _r lhat they 
should lo dc-wn flict the matter lo whi ch the orn rcspondccl [!Jat. th y st il l 
intended lo tr?Jvel to 118 to 111cel with the l'l-1 1 ·ti out their cma.:. 'onsequcntly, lb ( [ r 

jnitialed a separate investign ti n of HS, the scope of which WCI. "obstruction ol'jusLi e" L 

investigate T-1 for wilhh ldi11g allegations of employee mis ond11 l (b) (7)(>\.) (b) (6) (b) (7)(C) 

B Im i.;cord ing to w if·n s~ l stimony, the scope of th e OI r's invcsf ig11tio11 in lo OHS 
evolve.d t i1 elude a rnv iew f IIS' authority l conclud investi 1a tiuns and whetl1 •r il was 

approprial - o war!· i11 OHS It is comm n for rnosl 
OIGs lo no Li f y the FB I when investigations are ini tialed, and lhu" !he fG senl lw lcUers to the 

FBI no tifying them of tbe investigation of OJ-J . 'he first leller listed OHS as the.:: subj ct oftbe 
OIG's case, but it did not identify any individunl ( :<.xhibit 48) . The second letter iden tified 

f"!'P, Williams, and - as subjects (Exhib it 11.9). While I ·1 witnesses ge11 enrl ly 
described the nature of the invest igation ofOlW a· administrati ve, bolb Jellers ident ified a 
potential cri minal violation, o slruction ofjnst ic ( I . .S .. §1510 and 18 U .. C. § 15 19) as 

being within the scope of the inv sligation. 

During rh e comse oftlii; OIG's investigation of OJ-18, the om blE1ined (b) (7)(>\.) I 
and condp Led wi1 ness inlcrv il:WS . 1-[el ler cmai led 1111 to Cl tTn nge <1 11 

interview, whi cl led lo several weeks of discussions between !he ( , HS, and the E A 

Admin istrator '. office about th e scope of the que. tioning anu the purpns1:: of rim inLerview. C n 

October 24 20 l Heller und Im conduc!ed an inlerview orim in 1111 OJ 'wn lcrcnce 

room. ft'' was reprnsenl cl by a privE1te i1ltorncy. After whnt nil pmlicipm1ls des ribed as <.1 

contentious !"our-hour in tervi w - dt:parted JG spnces, and Im escorted f"!'' 
attorney ot1t ol'the EPA bui lding. 

When - returned lo the H office, l'!!P noted lhal he appeared visib ly shaken by 
!he interv iew. ft!' reported lo Williams and ft!' that the 01 agents had :.isked him 
about topics lhnt were prev ious ly agreed upon to b off- lim it!> For th e in vestiga ti on ... --·-Meanwhile, Hel ler ren liz cl she forgot to havc llm execu!e <l A prior to his and hi s 

attorney's departure from lh interview room . Heller and lhen wc11l to OHS 

spaces to locale - <lnd have him execute the NJ A. Upon cnlering OHS spaces (-Ie ller and 
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I Ii, f<1 ag nt' both ass rl that William was belli er ·nl :111d aggrc:;sivc in his inl raction 
witl1 I lcll ·r. Ir II ·r ·lnitns h:Jl he approa he I with in I . in h s nf '1 ·rand point!.!d hi. finger 
wirh i11 i11 ·h , fli c1· chcsl. Olli agents desc1 ibcd Willirn11 a: ye ll ing lo11dly rn1d sw nting 

prr li1 :u ly with h11 I >ing vei11 '. ! Te l ler stated lhal she wns intimidnt d by Wilfo11ns, ;rnci when slrn 
st ·p1 n ) k away fr m him, Williams a Will(; d ;rnd I s ·d lhc Ii f;mc ·. \ illiams 111@"!9 
and - sl led rhal \ ilfinms ne er got lo ·er than ( v I · l fr m I I II •r 11l any time, \ as aim 

ut lhr ·1111, n r ·J scd the distance with r I JI r, and spe ·iii ally p in Led lo ard lhc d or of 

lhc :uit •' hil dir lin the agent! to lea e never poinlin • clir elf nt Ir ·11 ·r. II tine denied 

that \ illiam: y If t. d ni d !hat he\' as sw ating profi ly and d nic I rim h had ulging 

veins. T ith rn!" 1'11" 11or I'"!" d crib <l \ i llialll • b h, vi I"' threatening or 
inappr prialc. ·v '11lually Heller and l'!IT 1cfl H . 

1\J1 r 11 lier, nu tliet'"d parted the H nice, Willfam r ·cci\.c n l I phone call from 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

I Id\ illiams that - wa upsc, nncl . a kcd William to r misc . 
(b) (6) (b) (7)(C) 

l mn lcmlcr, he' ould d hi. est lo' c11 ·uru tlml lhc~. ·things <lic..I nol 
c 11ti11u l ha pen. 

Upon lh ·ir r ·111rn lo lh I ] office, Hell r informed h r mnnng rs nnrlllf!!!'hnl Williams 

hnd "u.·sau lted her "ns she fell intimidated by I irn, nnd his inli11iJali 11 ·onstilul ·d a sau lt. 

Im ! .s1if'ic I l1111t lrn l 1lcl S11 ll iv1111, " We've ju. t ha I un ass111 il l on n fc:d rn l fi g 11L .. w · 'v got to 

l so111 ·thing ;ibm 11· 1his. We've ti t Lo handh: this siluHtion. •5 S11lli vn 11 th · 11 ispal ·h I 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) . nnd - Lo OH ' Lo in cslig:Hc. l'!!" :111d \ ' ill imn chantcterized 

Lh · C I i :i nts nlry into rhc H. pace as being auth ritnti <.:,amt l'!!n c mpar cl ill 
poli' • nicer n a dru • r, id.Ii lli'!!''ga~e a si111 il ar accounl of Ow agcnls •11lr ,. he testified 
Urn! \ h 11 they nl ,re I H he inslructed Williams to omc h r ·, 'and he 1111d \. illiam · 
milk· I 1 > ;ml n h olh r" ggr ssively.u s••, ralkcd I as! h •in I 1 t ·d- 1 "Stay 

7 put."' \'hi le i"!!" anrl I'll" auempt d lO inlervi wlet"' and\ 'ill iams,111 and 

- tlcmpl d t int r ie\\1'!!'' in a conference ro m. ai d 
- indic.at ·d th y ull mpted to calm d1e siluation. he r j ng nl. I 01twy ·d illiams as 
b.,in 111 l., nd they indicat d hi· ha ior as in on i tcnl ith a pr fc i nal office elling. 
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MeanwhilcJ"'!!T!!' reit un lawru lly delained by lh (}[G :111d she tcslified lhal lh~. gcnls 

created a workp1.nce envi ronment i11 which she fl nrcd fo r her sn fi ·ty. Initiall y, llF''clid not 
want lo be inlervjewed <:It lh 11t lime giveJl the lime of day (a Pl. roxima fdy 6:"0 - 7:00 p.m.), nnd 

asked to b inlerviewed the fol lowing day. However, 11ftcrlm inf nm:c1 ler"' th·1t he was 

being compel! d lo be intervi wed, imc1 he co11id Ile fired if he .did nol comp!yJl"!!!ftfin a l!y 

agreed to lhc interview. illiams asked - rnJltiple limes if he was okay during the 

interv iew. wentually - said he did not' 1ant to be interviewed that evening. -
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) , And - cha 1·act.c rized Willi i1111s' conduct as disru ptive and interrering with 
their intervi w oHl!1!"ft However, f!lf!!W Willi11111s, a11d lmporlrnyecl Williams as being 
concerned abo u l"!l"as '"'"!'' learn lender. An.er approximal ly L 0 111 inulcs, t)l<.; f G agents 

lecided to t rminate the interviews because lhey believed lhey would not be fruitful, and they 
returned lo lhe IG office. 

Th~ fo ll owing day, Sull ivan reported Willi ams ' all eged assmil l orI-Tcller to FP . fnitial!y, 
the OIG initi 1.1tcd ajoinl inv slign ti on with [I P<::, bul lhe OlG closed llrnt investigation based on a 
reques fr 111 lhe EPA Ad111 i11i strnto r. FP finished their invesligalion independent ly, and lhey 

uHimately«;1pplied for an ·irresl warrant for Wi ll iams for violating D ode 22 04 " ssault or 
hreaten -d ssault in a J\ em1cing Manner· Stalk ing". n ctssislanl Un ited ' ta tes attorney 

declined to pursue the chnrge and instructed [ 1 to hand le the matt r administrat iv ly. 

1. Di I SA .He ller improp r ly attempt lo preventf"I' from disclosino I ta ils of his 

int nti ew w he n s he 1·0Jcl him he' <)S not p rmi ted to dis 11 ss cl ta ils of th e interv iew 

-v ifh a n one th 1· flrnn bis aito r l1 

discusr tbe interview with ;rny ne, or at least an one except his ~!lorncy. Furthermore, wil1iesses 

were consist nt in observing lh ri l Heller never flclua lly presented/nttcmptcd to present the NDA 

l'o"'' fo r hi s review and possible signature, 11or did Hell er produGe the NDA to jus ify the 

propriety of her admonishm ent to ft!' 

sl'!!" pg.21 
9 Heller, pg. 50 
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\ c fo1111cl 110 l•P/\ I ; I oli y regarJing :>u ·h oral :1cl111011i. hm 111-; lo\ ilncs cs. Upon 
rn•i '.' flh · l·l' \ If \ fClrm (sec fa:Jlibit I~).\ hi h lhc r · nl rcnl' 1. \ n · H Iler' basis fo1· 

gi •in • - lh • ral adm 11i ·hm 1 nl-v.re n fed Ihm lhc ft 1m cl id n l onl.1i11 su h 
un ·nuditi mil in ·trn Ii n · ·1 .. _ lh se Hcll •r ga c lo - . 111 foci, the fc rm I ·ks any specific 

lnngu:1. pwhib iting th witn .si; rom dis ·ussing the cont .111 • >f hi: inl -rvi ., with ar 1 11e, 

rnrh ·r ii alls f' r h' \ itn ss I ackn w!edg he "unrlcrstm1 I " tllal "1111nuU1ori1.: d lisclosures" 
r ·rlnin inf' 1milli 11 ·oul I hn c neg~ti c i111pci l on lh · < l(l inv tir 1fi >n and th n xplicitly 

states its ·x uli 11 i: 'vo luntnry" rather than "r quir d". Li k '\ isi..: w f' rml 11 0 I i p !icy 

guverni11 g lhc LI S' o f lhc NOA r 1'111 itse lf. Apparently, ll SC uflh for111 Wf\ S il 11! l - 111 Ill rl based 
0111 lu 11 l , 2 I i :mai l from 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
to 1111 c tn p1.1;i11 l ug-nl p~rsum1eJ 

0111nim:d in F ·hil ir 12). 

·Pt\ rabl 111n r 7, ' 'onduct 
:. ·ncrnlly riminal infamous, dishone l imm ral or 1101 riou ·Jy disgnice uJ: 

a H J l!:!r, p . IJ 
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Uc Iler es a lated what was already a ery tense silua! ion. Witne:;~t:s tcsti fiod Lhat J1er 

<1dmo ni sh mcnL to - eli ·ited from Wi llimns llwl she shou ld ' pul il in writing ' 11 and 

f"""'" inte1jecti 11 g, "Tirn t s nol lrm:." 12 Thero fore, Wt: find by a prcponclcrnncc of cvidem: 

thal 1-IeJ!er vio lated !he GP/\ Table of ( ffenses, umlmr 22n, by performing her duties in a 

negligent manner by foilin g lo rec gnize lhal she lacked the aufhority lo issue an order lo ft'! 
not Lo discuss his interview with imyone except his attorney. 

7. . Di I SA Hc/le1· improperly con rnuni cn!"c wiih so111 eo 11 she !mew to be l'Ct 1·esc 11 ted 

b co unsel w ith ut · 1111 s -I prcscn '! 

est imony estab li shed thut wh ·n Heller anc- m-rived M !he OL-J S s1 <lee, f!lf!!R 
aHorney wns not prcsenl. He lle r lestificd lhal she lold - she wanted lo spc<l k wilb him 

privately, to which - responded lhat he did not wish to spe<lk wiih her wilhouL his ntlorne 
presen . Heller persiste I by lcl ling - that he wns 11ot permitlcd to dist; Josc !be c ntents oJ" 

bis inte rview with "anyo11e". l'!!R test ifi d hat she believed it was inappropriate for Heller 

to persist in engaging with - after he staled he dicJ not wish to sp ak without bis altomey 

present. - infi rm I Heller that she 'shou ld not be there'' because he was represented by rm 
riitorney. 13 

Whil H ell r was re luctant to charnclerizc her investiga tion of 01-l.. fl purely 
administrat ive she also l sc i lied that she djd not believe - was 'nl illed lo an attorney in the 
first t lace becBLrse hi s in terv iew was ad11ini lrativc in nnturc, and his attorney was permillcd 
during the interview a · a 'courtesy." Additionally, Hell er di I not intend lo askB'' any 

question , therefore she did 11 l bcliev 1111 wa ent itled to an atto rney when she approache I 

him to sign Lhe N OA. 

rn order lo stab lish that I [cih· violated,. U.S.C. §555 it musl bt: proven that H lier denied 

1!1'' the righl to co11 11 sel during an "ngency prnceccl i11 g." fn 'ohen v. Depurtment of 
Homeland ecurity, 121 .S.P.R . 152; 20 14 MSPI LE.- [S 3967 (Jun 19, 20l4), th Boarrl 

noted hat the " PA J.Admin isl ·ati vc Procedures A l] estab lishes n right lo coun sel during 
"agency pro eedings." The Hon nl definer! an "agency proceeding" m; "ru le-niaking, 

adjud ication and licen::;ing." I he Guard furtl1er slnled, " It [5 U.S. '. §555_) does not c~·cate a right 

to counsel during an inve li ga ion. hercfore, based on a pr pondcrance or ev idence we find 

H · Iler did not violale S U.,'.C. §555 becnuse I cll er and HI@""!!' 1 rescnce i11 r-r · wns 1101 f r 

the purpos.e of an 'agency proceeding .' 

Jn order to ·srabl ish th ~ t r-lcller vio l~ted the Mel acle Amendment (28 U.S.C. §530B), it 
must be proven that Hcl ler acting on be ha If of ~m aUorney for Lhe o crnmcnt, typically an 

ll ~JilJ. iaTI1S 1 pg . 28 
l2 ~let"• pg . 2 l 
l] imee•n pg . 34 
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1\ is1·111t Jnit ·d 8!at . 

I\ Ith mgh lhi s Wll ultimnt · ly ;i 11100L point been use lh' ·nsc wns 110[ pl"S ·11l i..:cl ror !; ri111inal 

l J' li'i' ·1i1i o11, lhu issue r lh · pro1 ricly of Heller co1111111111i ·n ling wilh - 0 11l ~J i le Lh 

pres nc<.: uf hi s allorncy in vio lation of the EPA l i's< wn p Ii ·y ou l I lulVl: bi..:i..: 11 raised by 

n 1111sd i the nrnll ·r hnd pr gressed L n !rinl. 

llid \.V illi am. laf · fW Ta ble of Offcus s 1111rnhc1· R lm.s i' · 01· o ffi ·11 i •e 

Ja11 ,11:1 g · 11r s, 1 1· lh 1· conclu · dudn j Iii. in ·rn Ii 11 ,. ill! ([ ! II •1··. 

fnnrt rl LHbli. h Lhal Williams iolateu om" . 111mh ·r in th' J I rnl It· of Offenses, 
illiam 



;5fF!CA110N: 

.W !50000~~-07- CT- ! 5-H< -FFO .lilly 16, 20l 5 

)2 

14 
IN nts, but al so reporls ht: ren fl physical <!Ua ·k Wt.IS "imminent". Yet by bis own admissio1,1, 
!PP'1 1

' toolc no action 1'!nrf 1nr1de 110 statements lo tissist I leller during her en 01111Lcr wilh 

Williams. As A former !"P'' estified that lie ha· bee11 involved in 

"hundr ds 'of use of rorc· incidents . It is Lhcr ·fore inconceivab le thal;p=wuul I st·m1d 
s il ently nex t 1. H Iler even asher Jt u physi 'A l aflar.k was 'irnmincnl". 

Williams den ied po inting at l leller, stat ing llwl h -. as actually poi11ting L warc.J Lhe door and 

irecling ber lo leave. Both f"!'' imd Im co'rrnbornte Williams' lcsLi111011y. Based on the 

accou nts o[Hel ler, f"!'P Willi<lms, - rn1cl i"""tttwe find by a I re1 on lerance or 
evidence that Williams did not us :ibusive or ffensivc Jnnguage nor did he use abus ive or 
offensi e gestures during his in ternction wilh Heller. 

Did - vio lttte f~ PA-0 G pol icy I y'c;ius indlee'" for :1son:ib l r beli eve h was 
in a custot.Ji:.1 J s itu ~1 f.io11? 

EP /\. OIG l ol icy Number 207, parl 3-L stales,' Unless taken into cusl rly, person 
interviewed by the 1 are free lo leave an int rview at any time. ccasionally, circumstanc s 

might evolve under which an interviewee might re<isonably perceive that a cus! di al situation has 

ans pe ial gents should lnlce car to IJrevcnl such sitmitions /'ram arising.' We find that 
I 

iolatcd lhis s tnn lard. 

f"'!!" testi111ony m1d lhe memorandum he prepared after lhe cvenls of 0 tab r 24, 2 L3 

reOect thatim to ld '1i111 that he need d to be interviewed im mediately. Wh n - i1rfi rmed 

Im that Ii wou ld prerer lo Ix: interviewed nt !I later d, te because it W<l!; beyond business hour: 

and he was al ready late leaving lhe offi ce, Im told Im "We neecl lo s1 enk to vo u now." 
ll't!"described Im <ls" cry insi:-;tent 0111 aggressive in his tone wi!fl me.'' - l'urthcr 

testified 'lmlm b cm11e more insistent CJ11d stnrtecl thre::iten ing lhnt I wo!l ld be obstructing 

an [G investigation i[ l liid n t provide them immediate testimony and tlrnt administn:1tive 

penalties can include me losing my job." 011 lw occasions, Im slalcc.l 'Tm compelling you 

to test ify." 15 When Im stoled, 'So you' re ob:; lructing the invest igation," ancf began wriling 

things downl"t!!' igr •cl ln tht.: int rvicw al wh id1 tin elm led- and - into he 
conference r om . 16 

14 ~fet"ff. pg. 16 
u These slate111ents by - ca ll i11lo question whether ho violnled EPA Table of Offenses, Numb I' 22<1 by 
Miming his du ties in a neg! igen t manner by fa iling lo rcc~gnize that lie lncl<ed the lc_ga! null1orily to com~e l 

interview; however we c 11cl11ded llml nny such m1sconducl \ <IS subsumed w1thm the larger qucst1011 of 
whether Im violated EPA- fG policy by c~usinglm to rcasonnblc believe he was in a cuslodi:i l s ituat ion. 
16- pg.46 7 
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uld hear llm 

w ·apn11 / .1" 18 

l"!!P l • Limon c n I orated the others' testimon ab ut hi c 11 11 t. 

t ~~lilied rhat h r by ~ 

to me ·1 OllL Lhi:. 

lir ct I by , 1r 

B(JS d 11 Ill 11 • o'u11l • 

rea~onnb l y p r ·civccl thn u 

rhcrc or·. we lind by a pr 'I 
umb r .07. I ml l.1. 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
m ighl h

I }

nv • 

 Policy 

In lr 1 ·r lo ·strtl Ii h lhoL William iolalccJ offense numb ·r l in Liu.: Fl' l'al>lc of ffenses 
. . . rdi1s11 I to t · ·ti Cy 1 ·ooJ cmte in an official pro c ·ding it 11111 'L I c pr 1v •11 ( nl ill iams had a 
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du ly lo coopcrntc in a11 ofl 1c.:inl proceed ing nnd lliilr::cl 10 do w. T he EPA T<1b le of C ffenses does 
noi define the term "ofli ·ia l proceeding" ::is it is used in 1he contex_t ofoffe11st: 1111111ber l6. For 
lhe purposes of the foll wing imulysis we have 11doptccl !he follow ing definition ol'tlie term 
'official proceeding' found in The meri an L~1w rnst il11l 's Model f'cn:il Code /\nnol::ited. 

A rliGle 240 Bribery ·md :orrupt In fluencc, Sc lion 24 O.< . It stales, "a procee li11 0 hcm:d or 

which may b beard efore ·my lcgisJali e, judici:il. nclministrative or other gov rnmental agency 
or officia l authorized lo lak i;vidence under oath, in luding :iny referee, hearing exam iner, 

comn issioner notary or other person lnking testimony r depos ition in connecli n wilh any such 

proceeding." Given tlrnt duri ng the second encounter, the OfG agents were Llispatch cl by lhe 

AI 'l Lo the 0 1-IS spa ·cs lo investigate [-fel ler's nll oe I assault, and that .OlG agents me 

empowered to take statement· under oath for fficinl investigations, we conclnde that the second 
uc unler was in fact a11 rfici;1! proceeding. 

In the second encounter, Wil liams interceded n bcholf of!lmto slopft!' compelled 

interview oJler'" which was beingacliievcd byC!' i1;nproper custodial rcstrninl ofl'!!" 
fn Lhat case, - stal d that he was th re3tem:d wilhjob lerminotion bylm iflm did not 
immediately submit to 3 11 interview. Will irnns stated thnt he heard!"'l!"mnk ing th reats to 

terminate I'!!" employment if he did not cooper· Le.:. Im himself acknowl d0 ed that he lo ld 
li"!!•"You do need to Lall to me. You're requir d by EPA policy to talk to me about this. 
Yo11'r~ uot the su ~ect of this investigation. You know. Lhere s a ... you're direcl cl by your 
administrator to talk to 19 

111 ." \ illioms interced d in that interview only an r h aring the 

threats made againstl'!!" and after hearinglm .stale !hat he did not wish t submit to an 

interview at that time. Wil l iams previously asi<ec.J ll"t!P' to state his e1u l10rity in questioning 
employees after hours, anti questioned f"'!!!'"I! au thority to "do whatever il is you' re doing" 

20 
witho ut 111anagemen t approvH I. He also hett rd let'T Le i I 1111@"!' tlrnt it' hi.:: di d not see a 

f lony com milted il1 his l rescm:e, lhcn l1e needed lo lt.!11 ve. '· 1 Wi Ilia ms lf1erelC>re ·ou lcl have 
reasonably be lieved t lrnt!m had nu authority t c mpel lm to submit t an interview by 

improperly restraining II""!' freedom of mo em nl ::rfterlm repeatedly lo id Im that he 
did not wish to be interviewed ;1l that pnrticular time. We th refore do not find tlml Williams 

' refused to cooperale' b11t rnther llrnl Williams assisted - in exercising his right not to be 
1 laced in custody and interviewed a such a lale h min lhe work day ::is opposed t being 

interviewed in a 11011-custodiu l s ilLrnti on the next worl lay. 

Simiiarly, we find that Wi lli rnlJS did not violate E[ A T<tb le of Offenses, Number 20, 
"Insubordinate defiance of authority, disregard · direclive, refusa l to comply with proper 
order". To establish ·1 violation of this standar , it must be proven !hat Will iams defied lega l 

l!ij pg . l 4 
m Williams, pg. 61 
21 t-lilliams, pg. 62 
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m11 horit.y or r foscd h ·0111ply wilh a proper order. I h fa t that - impr p •rly comp !led 

- to ubmil l All infer iew by violating r.P r nlicy N11111ber 207 Pnrt - I, cnll inlo serious 
q11eslio11 wh U1 1lli"!!P dirccli.on to\ i lliam. l 'stop intcrr ring witJ1 I"!!'' misconduct 
cuu lcl e 1 n be on i ler J • "proper order" under Fl' 1';1()1 r Offi·n ·e~, 'umb ·r 20. 
·urlh ·n 1or , · P < J I I nlcrim Guidance 2 7-0 I ·tnl .-; ' If an inh icw •i; ha · been atlv!sed of 

his nr her duty lo respond but refuses to do so, Lh rk:!ail r garding Ibis r fusa l will be reporleu 
l llie f L who will lh n report the mailer lo lh · appr print og ncy Ciicials ... so lhal 
nppr priMc 111nm1g ·m ·11[ urclers and/or adminislrntivc a ·ti n may be lal en." fn thi s case, there is 

11 c r~ vid nee lbHtB'" r·cporle 1 I'!!" refusal lo ;m"wcr q11cstions to he A I JI. Instead, lhe 

:vidcm; sugg sis lhatlm responded Co II'"'' rcr11snl ( tlnsw r 1ucslio11s with physical 
sepni:·11ion Cron thers in lhc office and threats lo l rminM I'll" mt loy111enl. EPA 0( 

poli ·y cleu rty indi ·at · Lhal lh autbority to ompcl an mployc coopcrati n res! wilh 

nrnnag ment (' ... so llrnl nppr priatemanagemcnl ord r. ~nd/or admini 1rativ · n ·ti n may be 

Luk 11. ' and not\ ilh Lhe El A OI • special agcnt !M'!!PT orcl r for - l o perat was, 
lher fo re, made by Im without proper legal authority. l-tirth r ev n Bii"!!'' while 

de. ribing William" · nd11 t as "inlerfer nee' . did 1101 foc i that Williar ' ondu l r se lo the 
level of' bstructi n . 21 I 11 facl, it was 11pervisor, wh made th decision to 

n t cmri r clf'P"Prliru·ti lo Williams, strongly sugg · ·tin lh3t he eilher a l"l:ognized 

l"!!Pdir 
0 

ti 11 lO ~ illiams \as nola 'proper Jrdcr,. a11<.J/ r (b) clicl n L belie illiams' 
• nuucl constitulc a j 1:1Li n r'"!!'S'di1t:ctio11. rnstcad, lhc (bur ag ·11ts ti pnrled Lhe 0 ft cc 

space. f' r th • r a suns, find by a prepond ran o Lil' vidence Lhal W i II iam did not 
vi Jht ;;-p,\ able ore ff nses number20. 

( rn1c1· Mntt r. 

The scop~ ur this inv ·sligat ion was !imi[cd l llw cv1,;nls or ct her 2'1I 2013. [ .. rs did not 

invc ignt lhe foll wi11g all ·galio11s/issues Llwl ., ere out ·id tlrnl scop ·: 

o tt rney irnn s ~ 11 ' gat ion that the El r 1 11s d c crcivc and inappropri:.ile means to 

::iltcmpt l ga in (b)(7)(A) 
tl ·cc ·s I -

ira1 s all galion that IG Elkins and hi ' Sl<1ff made f: Is st t men ls lo both 

h use. [ , ngr s. r garding H 'actions in th' 1 ·1111 e:i le invc Ligation . 

. he propri ly < f th FPA 01 ,'s inquiry u l wh th r- vas authorize I by policy 

r regulnti 11 l ·ontlucl i11 ligations in fr ; 

o WI ether a· nulhorized to vithhold inlbnnnti n from lhc 
(b)(7)(A) (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

[Ci 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

• \ illiams. ••• 
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o Whether lhe GPA OlG NJ>A is a lega l ly bi11di11g ;1greement (see Flxh ibif 12). 

o Whelher there wcis sufficient evidence for fh1.: l ~ P/\ OIO to "Lille" (b)(6) (b)(7)(C)- Williams, 
nnd (b)(6) (b)(7)

(C)
- for violation of 18 TJ.S.C. §1519 a~ indicated in the EPA-OTCi teller to the 

FBf (see Exhibit 49). 
(b)(6), (b)(7)

o -(C) allegation ilrnl the FPS agent misrepresented facts in his arrest warrant 
<1pp lication for Will iams. DCfS referred lhal "" llcgaLion to tbe Department o f' Homel<ind 
Securi ty, 0[0 (Exhibit 5 l). 

~.SSIFICATIOl4 : 
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I. Letter from the Honorable Arthur Elkins to lhe Honorable Phy/I is Fong elated Jamrnry 24, 
2014, w.ith attachments. 

2. CvfOU beLweenDoD ·OIG and EPA OIG dated Mmch 10, 20 !4. 

3. Letters from Avi Gmbow, EPA, to Henry Shelley, DoD OfG, d<lted Uebruary 26, 2014 and 
September LS, 201.4. 

4. [-Ieller's testimony before Urn HOGR Corrnni!tee dated May 7, 201'1·. 

5. Letter from Biran to McCarthy, Rymer; and fong ela ted September l8, 2014. 

6. Transcript of Heller's interview dated September 30, 2014. 

7. EPA OIG Case Initiation Case#: OI-AR-20 13-ADM-01 lO, with attachment. 

8. Memorandum fron , "RE: Facts Informally 
Gathered fl 

(b)(6) • 
(Redacted 

(b)l7)({) I egarding Purported Positions Currently Held by 
dated May l , 20 12. 

9. List of in terview questions created forf"!'' EPA OIG interview. 

l 0. Memorandum of Activi ty prepared by SA El isabeth Drake (Hel /er), with attachmei1ts. 

11. "Administrative Warning: Duty to Cooperate" (Kalkines) form signed by ft" elated 
· October 24, 2013 . 

12. EPA OIG NDA and email fron to - dated Septen~ber 25, . 
2014, forwarding!"IP' email dated June 10, 2013, Subject: "Non~Disclosure Agreement 
061013.clotx." · 

l3. Memorandrn11 of Activity pre1;::ired by Heller regard ing the incident in OHS on October 24, 
201.3. 

14. Memorandum of [nterview of Heller prepared by'!!'"P!t' - EPA OlG, dated 
October 25, 2013. 

[ 5. Transcript oCT'!llt!!T interview dated ?ctober8 , 20 14. 

16.1$11!' written statement elated October 26, 2013 . 

l7.Trnnscriptof 1 1 
' in terv iewdated0ctober [6,20L4. 

18. Memorandum of Jnterview ofler'" prepared by (b)(i>) (b)(7)(() , BPA OTG, elated 
October 25, 2013, including attached Memorn1~dum of Activity prepared bylffl!'S' 
regarding the incident in OHS on October 24, 20 13 (marked "Draft"). 

l 9. Transcript otJll"'S' interview dated October 23, 2014. 

20. Ema il from Im to SA , DCTS, containingl"'Mstatemenl regarding the 
incident in OHS on October 24, 20 13. 

21. Transcript off"'"!'!!' interview dated October 30, 2014. 
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22. ra11scripl o,_ second interview d;itecJ November 6, · 0 I 

2 . Transcript I l'"P' int rview daled Novem_ber 6 20 l . 

24. I m randum li r Record fr m llm Lo fatthcw Uri lz, I puty ' hier r. ' laff EPA, dated 
N i; mb ·r 20 14. 

July 16, 20 15 

s~· 

25. l<:rm1i l from Im to Juan [Zeyes, Sul j ect: "Tntcrview with 1h Of i , dnled ctober 24, 2013 

. 26 .. ketch pre1 a red by l*l!M 
27. Fl invest igativ report Cl 11cl alTidavit in support of an arr · st w11rrnn l. 

28. Trnns ript oH"" interview dnted Novern er 13, 20 I 4. 

29. Mcm r:rndum f Unders!:.mding between the FB l :lnd Cl . 

30. "Summary f BP /FBI Meeting on August l; 201 3" prcpar•d by JL1 ·u1 Reyes. 

10 fnlci:v icw, 'dated October 26 20 13. 

3 . - mnil fromlT'' ~o Gwen Keyes Fleming Fritz Reed r, and l r;yes Subjei.:t: Thursday 
evening,> dated ctober 27, 2013. 

34. Transcriptof Wi/Jioms' intr;rviewdmedN vember24 20 14. 

5. l:.nrni l fr m Wil l iams to Avi 08rbow, Brenda Mallory,-Mat!h -w •rilz John Reeder Juan 
Heye·, and lW n Keye Fleming Subjecl: "Update with ·tnber 24, 2013. 

6. 'Two Em, ii fr 111 Williams lo fia rbow, Mallory Fritz Reeder, l yes, ;incl Keyes Flem ing, 
.-l ubj e t: "RE: pdale with O rG," dated Oc!ober 24, (. 0 I .. 

37. Photogrflphs oH HS taken by the DCIS agents. 

38. Trnns ript · f Re der's int rview dated December 3, 20 I tl . 

9. Docum nta ti n p rlaining le HeJ l er '~-

Ll . D t;Utncnt provided lo D , IS by Reeder tlaled Murch I 3, 0 I 5. 

J. Transcript or, ulliv<.111's interview dated December 24 2014 . . 

42. Emai l from A to SA l""!!l''declining prosecution orl""P' dated 
January 20 15. 

4 . nm cript of l'"fts interview dated February I 0 20 l5. 

4 . f(f! llcines warning signed by l"l!P 
45. Memorandum ( f Aclivi ly prepared by I'll" rcnccling I he event. r October 24, 20 J 3. 

46. Memorandum oflntcrv iew ofli""' prepared by SA'lf'""dat ·d ctober 25 2013 . 
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•rJ. rranscripl n"'"R't!' in! rv1cw lat 'd Fel rumy 2 I 201 . 

1
1 '. bmnil fr m ln - dat ·d pril !•I, .Ol.. \ ilh ;1Ha hed nolilication 

!ell r Ii· m ~PA- C f i tor I. 

1J Email li"clm -1"'"!9 Lo lM·••I dat .<I I ril 20, 20 1 , with ntln hed notification 
I Her fh1 Ill _,p A· f r to l"'HL 

50. b1m ii fr m (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) to (b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
declining pn ·ccul.io1 l)f thi~ 11rnlter dat d 

Dy 15,2 15. 

5 1. Ref rni ! 11 [ JfQ IC1. 

rs I PR Prepared by 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

and 
(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 

(b)(6) (b)(7)(C) 
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	was named as !he subject investigation bec~use "be was the person that we were, he was Lhe person Chat w~1s having Nie interncfi JJS with OHS ... 80 when [ dra(led this that was tbe case. But we didn't lcnow who within HS it was going lo be ... Whether omebody was lei ling him that l1e had to do that or what.' Heller stated that her management assigoed the inv sligation to her, and they were aware she and-were running !he case. The [G sent a routine noliiicalion about the invesligafion to the FBI but he cas
	At i-bi. point in the i11terview I'll" formally adopted a statement be rim !led on October 24, 20 J 3, soon after the incid 11t occurred (Rxhibit IS). fn this s1<1temcntJ!!@ll"indicated !hat in his estimation Williams' conduCt rose to a criminal violation of 18 lJ. '.C. § 11 I, 'Assaulting, resisting, or I'"'' impc ling certain offit;ers of employec.s".8 When nsked to arii cu]fll e his rensot ing, s_tated that Wi1 liall1.<: "activity and his beh<J vi or w11s, uh, intended only to interfere with her, u11, of
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